INTRODUCTION

The eatliest permanent settlers to establish roots in Milford came to Kent and Sussex Countics
between 1664 and 1676 after the English took control of Delaware from the Dutch and Swedes.
Most early settlers came from old Somerset and Accomac Counties in Maryland and Virginia
where English families were staking claims to small land grants of 200 acres on Maryland and
Virginia’s eastemn shore. Other families moved north from Lewes after that town was founded in
1631 by the Dutch West India Company,

Henry Bowman obtained a patent from the Duke of York in 1680 to settle a 2 000-acre tract
of land called “Saw Mill Range” that now encompasses Milford, Alexander Draper settled in
Slaughter Neck in 1677, Luke Watson was granted land in Cedar Neck in 1676, Mark Manlove
moved to Milford Neck in 1677, and Isaac Mason settled along Canterbury Road about 1685,

Milford was sertled at the headwaters of the Mispillion River at a location called “Threc
Runs,” at the confluence of the Mispillion River and Bowman’s and Clark’s branches. These
early English settlers were industrious millers, farmers, merchants, and sailors. Milford got its
start as a landing site and rading post huilt by a mariner-tumed-trader, Joseph Oliver. Oliver
was born about 1727 in Slaughter Neck near the plantations of Alexander Draper and
Nehemiah Davis. He migrated narth ro the Mispillion River headwarters and during 1771-1773
purchased a 115-acre tract of farmland on the north side of the Mispillion River, where he
established his home and wharf.

In 1787, Oliver divided his farm into a town grid and began offering lots to newer settlers ,
costing from $3 to $8 per year under the old English system of ground rents. The first lots were
sold along Northwest Front Street in December 1786 and January 1787. By 1790, Milford had
more than 80 structures built on Oliver’s 115-acre farm extending from the river to the present
location of Banneker School on North Street.

By 1791, Oliver had peritioned the General Assembly in Dover for a drawbridge over the
Mispillion to be constructed along “Kings Highway” leading from Kent to Sussex Counry. The
bridge permitted traders and travelers easy access ro Sussex County along the road leading to
the court at Lewestown. At the same time in 1787 that Oliver was selling lots for his new
village, Parson Sydenham Thorne, rector of the Savannah Church located three miles west of
Milford, decided to relocate his church to a plot of land donated by Oliver along Church Street
in Milford. Parson Thome marricd a wealthy widow, Betty Crapper, and purchased the stately
“Silver Hill" mansion and 263 -acre farm owned by the Cullen family. He soon built a gristmill
just west of QOliver's landing. Together, these two enterprising leadets assured the survival of
Milford as a new town through their tireless efforts to bring business, culture, religion, and
civility to a primitive area.

Milford obtained its town charter in 1807, the same vear Joseph Oliver died. New merchants
established stores, wharves, and granarics along North Walnut Street, extending the business
district two blocks to the Mispillion River.

The Mispillion River was the primary avenue of trade throughout the 19th century and it is
not surprising that Milford became a major shipbuilding town around 1790, with John Draper’s
shipyard located on the north side of the Mispillion at Northeast Fourth Street where it meets
the river. Between 1790 and 1815, William DuPrey operated another shipyard néar New Whar{
east of Milford, and by 1815, Nathaniel Hickman was building wouden sailing vesscls farther
east at his farm near Delaware Bay, known as Hickman’s Landing. By 1860 Milford boasted
seven shipyards employing hundreds of carpenters, loggers, caulkers, and scroll workers.

Following the Civil War improvements in technology whered Milford into the lucrative era
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I. MILFORD PAST AND PRESENT

Milford began as a little sertlement along the north bank of the Mispillion, lying
completely in Kent County. All area south of the river was known only as Sussex County. In
1791 when a law was enacted by the General Assembly providing for the maintenance of a
dtawbridge over the Mispillion, it was described as being, " on the public road leading from the
village of Milford into the county of Sussex.” Joseph Oliver laid out his land in building lots in
1787, a date accepted as that of the founding of Milford. The community was confined to the
area east of Mullet Run and north of the river. Like most towns and cities dating back to the
19th centuty, Milford’s street pattern has been kept, enlarged perhaps, but with the original
plaa of straight streets laid out in square blocks. By 1796, according to a historian of that time,
there were eighty houses, all but one built since the American Revolution.

N. W. Front Street, from N. Walnut Street to Silver Hill was the business section of
Milford in the days of Sydenham Thorne and Joseph Oliver. As homes were builr and new
businesses developed, the center of business activity shifted. “Downtown Walnut Street”, as
the shopping district between the two Front Streets is still known, was the center of business
by mid or late 19¢th century. A real estate and insurance office, an attorney’s office, a saloon,
barber shops with their red and white striped revolving poles as much a trademark as the cigar
store Indian, the city office, a thearre, banks, restaurants, a church, a hotel were interspersed
with stores. The dirt main street was originally paved with logs, calied a corduroy road. This
crude roadway was covered wirh bricks when rhe town outgrew irs pioneer days, and later the
automobile brought about the surfacing of the brick street with asphalt.

Through the pages of this section Milford is shown as it has looked from the turn of rthe
century to the summer of 1977. Traffic jams of horse-drawn vehicles, as well as heavy
automobile traffic, are pictured; dirr streets, views of downtown stores recalling memories of
rabbits, muskrats, chickens, and hogs hanging in front of the butcher shops, crates of fresh
vegetables and fruits set on the sidewalk in fronr of the grocery stores, bring back Milford of
early 1900.

Old buildings which Milfordians have loved and lost are shown here as well as those still
standing in all their dignity to lend beauty to Milford. In recent years there has been an
increased awareness in the community of the esthetic and economic value of our 18th and 19th
century buildings. It is no longer unusual to see an old building being renovated for use as a
place of business or a professional office. Young couples are restoring old houses while living
in them. If this trend to preserve and adapt old buildings to modern use continues, perhaps in
the future one will still be able to see the remaining architectural treasures depicred in
this book.
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streams, were of much greater importance, previous
to the construction of the railroad, than now. They
congisted prineipally of & suitable place for landing
and loading boats, and for these purposes granaries
were erected. The principal one on the Murderkill
Creek was Fork Landing, where, in 1816, Levi Lister
owned a wharf and granary, and another wharf and
granary was jointly owned by Thomas Sipple and
William Tomlinson. In 1852 there were here three
granarics, two atores and several dwollings. Two
vessels plied weekly between this landing and Phila-
delphia, carrying grain to the latter place. It is now
oeccusionally visited by boats of light tonnage.

Bonoors.— The several subscription schools in
operation previous to 1829 gave way to the common
school system adopted in that year. The hundred
was divided into achool districts, and school-houses
erected in suitable locations, Among the pioneer
district-achool teachers within the bonnds of Milford
Hundred, were John Quillen, John Bharp, William
Hurley, Martin Harrington and Harvey. Ag
the buildioga became dilepidated, new and mnre com-
modious ones were erected, and when the scholars
becnme too numerous, new sachool districta wore
created, The schonls of to-day in this hundred are
in an excellent condition, being supplied with many
conveniences, and tanght for nine months each year
by skillful and competent teachers.

MILFORD TOWN.

The town of Milford is located on both sides
of the Mispillion Creek, —North Milford, nr the
old town, being taken from Milford Hundred, Kent
County, and Bouth Milford being taken from Ce-
dar Creek Hundred, Sussex County, The town is
located on a tract called “Saw-Mill Range,” contain-
ing seventeen hundred and fifty acres of land, which
was warranted to Henry Bowman, Mavch 20, 1630,
on condition that he should bnild a saaw-mill thercon.
It is probable that he complied with the conditions
of the contract and built & saw-mill, hut just where
it was located it is now impossible to tell, Saw-Mill
Range passed from Henry Dowman to his son Johu,
who, May 5, 1780, mold five hnndred and ten acrea
of it te Joseph Booth, who gave part of it to his son
John, who sold it to William Manlove, Jr.

May 17th, 1771, Joseph Oliver purchased one hun-
dred and fifteen acres of Baw-Mill Range of Jacoh
Warrington, who then owned it, and April 17,1773,
he bought, adjoining, a tract of Levin Orapper, alac
part of Baw-Mill Range, also part of an adjoining
tract called “Improvement,” of the Pennsylvania
Land Company.

February 28, 1774, Nathan Adams (merchant)
bonght one-quarter of an acre of land lying on the
ereek near the place called Millstone Landing, now
known ag New Wharf Landing, of Joseph Oliver. In
1787 Joseph Oliver had James Johnson survey the
land lying on the north gide of Mispillion Creek into
town lots, Bomse of these lots were conveyed by deed,
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but most of them were demised by perpetusl lease,
with a resorvation of gronnd-rent, which ia atill paid
annnally. The first lot of which there is any record
at Dover wos taken by William Johnson, on the
corner nf Water and Walnut Streets, and is now occu-
pied by C. W. Dnvidson, jeweler. The boundariea of
the lot gre here given, as a apecimen of a coriously
minute description :—

"Teglnnleg ot the intemection of waid streat, 16 hning 1hat polot
whizh liath north stoven degrees west, Turty-four fest Buven [neliea fram
tha dinmatrirsl conlen of the body of a oupls iree tkan ut the height of
cfghtoen Inehes sbuve 1he sutfaes of the ground, standing In the edgs
uf the cripplo ul muid croek, babow Milfurd beldgs; theoee Funning with
Woinui Hiruat north sight degreve and Nty minutes wast, thivty-thveo
foul threo inchies ; thures Iessing sald steest north seventy-nlne degren,
savan ininutes and twenty-twa seconds east, vlghts-nliy fest ten luchon
Aol arven Liundred and soventy apd five thousandihn of an inch.  Then
ganth sdight degrees nnd N7y rulncles cast, thirtyoho feol and ona wil-
ilou fotly-pine tivusaml four bundral and sevonty-live ton millivnthe
of an Ineh to Wolve Street; thence with Wubax ¥troot south soveoty-
geven dogroew winl forty-funr wminukes west, nlnety feol home Lo the
iew of begipulng.  Containitg two tonssnd wight hendred and eighty
wud vight atperfeln] aqones feet apd ansenly-nioe squarn foclis wod
peventy mdllion voe bipstrad and elghty- tivee theusand and twenty ned
wevon haodred miliouths of an inch ™

Joseph Oliver, Br., leased or sold after this town
lots to the following persons, as fonnd among the
minutes of Jamea Johnaon’s surveys: Joseph Ayde-
lott, two lots on Froot Street in 1794, Thomas Allen,
William DBrinckle, James DBowen, Nancy Bradley,
Nancy Bateman, Jesse Bradiey, William Crempion,
John Cary, James Carman, Joseph Carman, John
Colling, Thomas Collins, John Crumpton, Elza Col-
lins, Zabdiel Dawson, Jumes Dawson, Peter Davis,
Jonathan Dycer, Abuer Dill, John Davis, Molly
Duvis, Andrew Davis, Sarah Davis, Monk Davis,
Oharles Draper, John Flemming from Poter Caverly,
Joram Griffith, Belitha Glass, Isaiah James in 1787,
Fiijah Jester, John Honston, Issac Lofland, John
Taws (brickiayer), Thomas Marriner, Jonathan Man-
love, James Millechop, Jobhn Newcom, Gauledett
Oliver, John Pleasonton, Andrew Patton, Curtis Pal-
more, Bamuel Pasley, Richard Pettigrew, Williom
Borden, Thomas Strowd, Joshno Bpencer, Noah Spen-
cer, Elina Shockley, Jolizr Ralston, Nathan Russom,
Neheminh Riley, John Thomas, Stephen Townsend,
Pompey Turner, James Tichner, Andrew Withs, Levi
Wilents, Tasper Waller, William Margin, Dothuel
Watson, William Ward, David Walton,

According to James Johnson’s notes he began May
28, 1817, to survey and lay out the town of Milford,
under the direction and superintendence of John
Drttigrew, Dr. Joseph Sudler, John Wallace, Martin
wwwaley and William Davis, commissioners, duly
clected to lay out the towu of Milford, in pnrsuance
of a special act of the Delaware Legislature, After
heing sworn by James Millechop, Esq., they procceded
to attend to the duties of their appointment.

The followiog are the boundaries given on a map in
1838: “ Beginuing at Mispillion Creek,at Paul Knobb’s
Landing; thence with a line of land formerly of Bam-
uel Oliver, Ben, and John Draper, North 53° West up
the lane leading to Paul Knabb's; thence on a division
line of lota now of Geo. B. Atkins and James T. Bur-
leigh, Gauladett Oliver, John Wallace, Peter F.
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Causey and Mary I{. Shockley, 148 perches out to the
road leading from Milford to Frederica and in a line
of land formerly of Wm. Bradley, dec’d, for the said
Oliver and Draper land; thence with said line South
22° West across the lot of Mary R. Shockley’s lot, in-
cluding two and a half acres therenf in the limite of
aaid town; . . . across the lot of Edward Collins,
Sen., dec’d, including one-third thereof, with the dwell-
ing-house in the limits of said town, across the
connty road six and threo-tenthe perches, north of &
stone huried on the Northwest side of snid road oppo-
site North Btreet; thence across Henderson Collins’ lot
on the east side of the (Juaker meeting-house road, in-
¢luding three and one-half acres thereof in the limits
of said town to and across the meeting-house road and
a piece of woods of Benjamin Potter’s and Benjamin
Henderson's line, making the whole line one hurdred
and ninety-two perches; thence with said Potter and
Henderson's line, formerly Oliver’s, west thirty-two
perches to an old white oak stump near Cullin’s
hranch; thence into and down the water-conrse of
gaid Cullin’s branch tn Mispillion Creek; thence
down said creek to the place of beginning.” In 1886
the lines were changed in some places. Tho first line
axtends from the Frederica road to a hranch 1hereof,
where it corners, forming nearly a right angle, thence
to Cullin's Branch, thence following the streams as
before to the place of beginning.

Bouth Milford has been laid out since by Jamea
Johnson and resurveyed by Thomas J, Dayis, Tt lies
on the gouth side of Mispillion Creek, and has Front
and Becond PBtreets parallel with the cresk and
Georgetown Read, Washington, Mortgomery, Frank-
lin and McColley Btreets running from the creek.
Carlisle Lane runs diagonally from the corner of
Franklin and Front to Becond Street; Cansey Street
extends from the Georgetown Road to the depot.
The town contaius some three thonsand inhabitants.
According to the (Heaner in 1856, the populatinn of
the town was twn thonsand inhabitants, with twenty-
five stores, two hotels, twelve schooners and sloops
ronning to Philadelphia. The export trade at this
time wan snid to be 250,000 bnshels of corn, 80,000
bushels of wheat, 10,000 bunshels nf oats, 5000 hushels
of rye, 2500 cords of wood, 400 cords of bark and 400
cords of quercitron, worth $351,600, and the imports
were placed at $225,000. The exports and imports
by shipping are not s much as formerly ; but if what
is transported by vessels is added to that carried hy
the cars, the amount would probably amount to more
than in 1856,

CorporaTION HiIsTORY.—The town of Milford
was fit incorporated in 1807; the fimmt Board of Com-
missioners were Dr., Joseph Budler, John Wallace,
Martin Dewaile, William Davis,

The act of incorporation passed in 1867 is the only
one we have records of, Under the town charter they
clected five commissioners, an alderman, an assessor
and a treasurer, all for one year.

1867.—C. ¥, Wateon, II. B. ¥itdaeman, P. W, Hall, Joho H, Denning,
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commiestenars; ¥ B, fmoot, niderman; De. N. Pratl, aesesor: 1, B,
lemmaony, collector 3 John B, Denning, aleck,

THB.—~A, T, A {Torber, T. F. Uainmwrsly, Jes. 1%, Aodesson, Jehn
Catull, W, Thonma Protiyman, emnmimlonars ; Jis, B.Davls, aidertnsa ;
JIIiB-kH- o, awesmor; I B, Mwmmuns, collector; J, ¥, Anderson,
wlork.

IRCL.—A. T, A, Torlert, Dy, N. Prult, Jeneph Truill, W Thomoa
Prottymnn, T, W, Holl, conitndsalonmy; Janes 8liort, sldermun | Jaa, H,
Buoll, neiensor | Joauph Gorby, collsctor; Dr, N, Pratt, clock.

T —Junes Pusiles, N. 1. Juhowon, J. T, Foull, ‘. ¥. anuversly,
Wou (7, Walsl, commilsslonnis ; Jumes Shore, wlleroun ; Joseph Gurhy,
vollavtur ; Jus, B, Boll, assensor ; 1, Y. Funlk, olark.

TRTL—Chne. T, Flemming, W, ¢, Welch, T, P, Hammersly, J. ¥.
Fuoallk, Johin R Ceball, commifmduners ; Jamas Shert, aldecmen ; Jea, H.
Ball, nesousor ; e, &, Mours, eollvelary ). Y, Foulk, cterk.

1872.—0. J. Hall, N. 1. I'Mersun, B . Fvane, Ohn. 1. ¥lamnmilng,
John W, Consey, Geo. Rowell, commissiooers ; Wi, Shocltivy, pldor-
nlun;, Jus, B. Davis, aseesor; deo, A, Muote, oollsoter; O, [ Tall,
elerle.

1874—J. Towery, Jas. T Mitchel, John R. Caball, Geo, Tuasell, D,
0. I{. Birong, Jamual Simpler, commissionors; Wm. Bhockloy, alder-
Il;nr;(: Jus, I. Mahen, esseesor ; Geo. A. Moore, collector; 8. M. Slmpler,
clorle, .

1874, —(Ches, T, Floeming, John Calnll, Wm, ;\. Yister, Bamual Simp-
ler, A. K. Hali, T. J. Duvis, commiesiviers ; Wm, Bhockley, aldormnn §
R. A, Bluwan, asseeaor ; Qdev. 4, Mowrs, eollector ; Chas, T. Xlewing,
elerk, B

1875.—0C. J. Uall, Joln W, Hallatt, John Caball, M, H. Davis, Jua,
Reedy, Wm. H. Davls, commlasioners ; Wm. S8hockley, alderman ; K. A.
Bteward, assessor ; Geo, 4, Moore, collector ; M. H, Davls, clerk,

187¢.~C. J. Lall, James Beedy, Johu B. Canoon, John Hallott,
‘Wor. IL Davie, M. H. Davils, commisalencrs: H. J. Beswick, ulder-
man; R, A, Btewand, weessor ; Wm, B, Truit, collestor; C, J, Hall,
alark.

1877.—F. W. Hall, Win. Hlll, Julin 1. Cannon, H, . MeGolley, Win.
A. Boriboor, A, K, Halt, commissloners ; Azel Stevens, aldermen ; Bem-
ucl M. Simpler, ; I 8. H , coliector ; H, W. MeColley,
clerk.

1878.—Elnathan Smith, Joho R. Cahall, . J. Beswick, 71. W, ¥Me(lol-
ley, Wm, F. Rerill, I. L. Swmith, commiseioners; Azel Bteverw, nlder-
mun ; Samuel M. Simpler, .8 H , eolleotor ; 2. J.
Deawlek, clovk.

18749.—R., ¥, Wateon, Churlea T. Fleming, 4. W. Jogeph, Willlam F,
Hevill, Charlea A. Biulr, D. 0. K. Strong, commissioners; Azel Stevens,
aldermoan; L. J. Beswlek, nsseagr, Georga ¥. Plarce, collector; D, 0. K.
Strong, clork,

1880, —Frank Rickards, Tho. Towneeml, James Ready, H, W, Mo-
Colley, 8. M. Bimpler, ifiarlos A. Blpir, commirsioners; Azel Stevopa,
aldermnn ; Goorge P, Minor, nesestor; Willinm IO. Twige, collector;
Theo, Towneesnud, ¢leri.

18K1.—Jamea Reedy, J. . Brown, Theo. Townsend, Jemes Rusae]l,
Charles 4. Blair, M. H. Davls, commissionars; Azal Slevens, alderan ;
E. J. Beswiclk, adsussor; 8. M. Slugdar, collector; Thag, Towneend, clerk,

1882.—In. Q. W. Marshull, Theo. Townsand, J. 0. Brown, 8. W.
GQray, M. IL. Davie, John B, Bmlth, commiseloners; Azel Btevens, uldar-
man; K. J. Beswick, sssesaor; 3, M. RBlmpler, eollactor; Theo, Town-
sand, clerk.

1083, —Frank Beedy, Johu H. Apcl, Jamea Welch, James Abbatt, John
W. Ratclitf, B, H. Gllman, commisaloners; Azel 8tevens, alderman; John
W, Hallctt, assessor; 8, M Simpler, colloctor; R. H. Gilman, elerlk,

1884, —John H, Apel, Bobt. M. Carpenter, Teeac 8. Truitt, K. H. Da-
vis, 8. N. Gray, J. T. Hells, commlssloners; Azel Stevens, nlderman ;
H. W. McColley, assensor; J, D, Hill, collectsr ; Isanc 8, Truitt, cleck.

1885, —James M. Hgll, Johe 1, Apel, War. N. Dursay, Wm. 1. Cansey,
Geo, O Abbatt, Geo, I Hoil, commlgsloners ; Azel Stovens, aldermmun ;
1. I, Davis, assersor ; F, I, 51ill, cellector ; Geo. LI Hall, eleck.

1856.—Jamed M. 1lal), Frank Richards, Wm. T. Walson, Wm. ¥,
Cavacy, H. W. McOulley, Wm. A, Humeas, commisaloners ; R, J, Buae
wick, elderman ; Theo, Townsend, aasessor ; J, D, Hill, eolleclor; H. W,
Mololley, clark.

An act of reincorporation was passed at Dover on
Febrnury 28, 1887, by which the town began to work
nnder a new charter, The government of the town
now consigty of a Tkwn Council, composed of o presi-
dent and six members. The prerident and three of
said members shall be freeholders within the town
limits, the assessor also to be a freeholdor. Two of
said conncilmen shell be elected for two years, the
president and fonr members for one year. 'here have
been several amendments to the old charter, hut none
of much interest.

Those elected under the new tewn charter, March
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7, 1887, were: President, FI. W. McColley; William
T, Wataon, James Ruasell, Joseph M. Davia, R. ¢
Hall, Frank Rickards, Charles II. Tuthill; Alder-
man, R. J. Beswick; Assessor, William G. Herring;
Uollector, Thomas A. Watson; Clerk, Charles H.
Tuthill,

Among those who have held the office of justice of
the peace in Milford are J. Millechop, Samuel Rat-
¢liffe, Henry Hudaon, Joho H. Denney, William M,
W. Dorgey, Manlove Hayes, Richard H. Phillips,
Robert J. Beswick, Lowder Layton, Beniah Wateon,
Williamn Porter, John J, Hazzard, William F. Revill,
William Shockley, Azel Stevens. Among the post-
masters were Thomas Winsamore, appointed in 1803;
Charles Mason, Perry Stevensnn, Joseph George,
William M. W. Dorsey, Alexander Hall, A, W, Bell,
Rhodes 8 Hemmons, William G, Hering, R, A.
Steward, Dr. B. Y. Watson,

IrpugTRiks.—Milford has always been an in-
dustrious town. The condition upon which Ifenry
Bowmsan took Saw-Mill Range was that he shonld
build a saw-mill, and from the name of the tract it is
bvident that saw-milla wore in operztion here at an
early day, In connection with the saw-mills it is
fitting to observe that ship-building was an carly and
important industry. The oak in this vicinity is good,
and the reputation of Delaware-bnilt schooners
and sloops was far extended. A small vessel was
built np near the dam many years age, and a man by
the name of Du Pre built one vessel at the New
Wharf. Io 1793 action was taken in the Legislature
in relation to a wharf, Robert Ruseell wos one of
the first ship-builders where Carlisle’s yard now is.
David West next carried on the business, hnilding
only about one small vessel per year. M. R. Curlisle
and William F. Revill carried on ship-building from
about 1830 to 1850, when Revill retired and Theo-
dore Carlisle entered into partnorship with his
brother. This partnership continued for about thirty
years, during which time they built many three-masted
schooners of one thonsand ton# burden. Bince Man-
love Carlisle died Thomas Caorlisle has pot built
many vesscls. Among other builders were Bylvester
A. Deputy and his son, Fames H, Deputy, who built a
pomber of ships and worked at the bugincss for many
years. William A. Seribner also had a yard where
David Lank, a son of John Lank, another old ship-
builder, now is, There are three ship-yards in opera-
tion mow,—Abbott's, Carliele’s and Lank’s. A tng-
boat, the first huilt at Milford, was lannched from
David Lank’s yard in 1887. There have been abont
8lx or seven vessels built per year at these yards for
many years, They have been mostly sloops or two
and three-maated-schooners, built for coast-wise trade,
of from one hundred and fifty to one thousand tons
burden.

(frist—Mills—In 1787 an act was paesed by the
Delaware Legislature enabling Rev., Bydenham
Thorne to erect a mill-dam across Mispillion Creek,
and for the condemnation of asmall piece of flat-
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land on the Bussex side of the said creek, for the use
of o grisi-mill, This petition represents that Rev.
Bydenham Thorne, of Kent County, is the owner of a
certain tract of land, which affords a very convenient
situation for a grist-mill, being at the head of Mis-
pillion Creek in the connty of Kent. It appears that
Rev. 8. Thorne crected a grist-mill where the Red Mill
now stands, poasibly the same structure that is there
now, about 1787. The mill is shingled in plﬁ.c'e of
siding and has been the same as now as far back as
any one now living can remembher,

There was 2 ford here formerly, which gave the
name Mill Ford or Milford. The head of navigation
is eaid to have been farther np the strenm prior to the
crection of the mill dam; Le that as it may, the head
of navigation iz now below the mill dam.

Joseph Oliver imnmediately began to lay ont o town
and lease lots, as before noticed, and the town from
this time forth begun to grow in population and im-
portance. This section hus been celebrated for corn,
and more recently guod wheat has been grown, which
has rendered the milling business both necessary and
profitable. Among the subsequent owners of this
mill have been Mr. Dutton, Johu M. Darby, Peter F,
Cuusey and his son of the sams nsme, who is the
present owner, {Gov, Cansey was also owner of what
js knewn as the Haven Mills, The Red Mill has
four run of stones, and recently one-half roller process
has been mdded., A husk factory was built for Orentt
Brothers abduf 1850, and is now nperated hy R, H.
Williams; it manufactures abont two hundred thou-
sand tons of huska for matresses. Pcter F, Causcy
hnilt a woolen-mili in 1868, which burned down July
27,1872, and was rebuilt and operated by Hoflecker &
Brother, who employed thirty hands and mannfactured
about five thousand yards of cloth per week, These
mills were one hundred by fifty feet main building,
with o picker-room twenty-two by fifty feet. They
were destroyed by fire in 1882, I H. Williams oper-
ated & mill for grinding black nak bark to a fine pow-
der, called quercitron, for coloring purposes. Thisa
braach of indostry has been abandoned since other
processes have heen discovered to produce like eolors
ut less expense. Greorge 8. Grier,an Englishman, haa
operated a foundry and repair-shop here for a num-
ber of years. Allen Tolbert owued the Haven Milla;
subsequently Edward Stapleford, Joseph Dutton,
and John M. Clayton finally purchased them for
John M. Darby. These mills at that time consisted
of u grist-mill, o saw-mill and carding-machine. The
tanning business was formerly quite extensively car-
ried on by James Clayton and othera.

Jameg H. Denning started a pottery on Pear Street
about 1840, and carricd oa business for about thirty-
five yeurs, making nll kinds of earthenware, supply-
ing all the country arnund. The American Bagket
Company was organized at Milford in 1876,

Alden first fully demonstrated the practicability
of his froit-drying process here in 1871, his estab-
lishment then employing ninety hands day and night
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during the fruit season, which lasts about six weeks,
and conenming from three hundred to five huudred
hasketa of peaches in twenty-four hours. Thore are
now some thirty drying factories in Milford and
vicinity, which, together with Reis’ Cannery, which
was started in 1881, and employs about eighty or
ninety hands, having a capacity of from fifteen
thousand to twenty thousand cans per day, ia capa-
ble of disposing of the peach and tomato erop with-
out loss to the farmer, even if there is no pressing
demand.

Nathan Davis had a small plow foundry back of
Lowery’s hotel, near John Dunning's pottery. In
1849, George 8. Grier purchesed the Haven Mills
water-power of Teter ', Cansey, and started a fonn-
dry. He bas employed sixteen hands and made agri-
enltural implemouts of all kinds, Matthews, Hall
& Co. have o foundry near the depot, started abont
1865, where general repairing iz done. Isaae Simpsaon
hns the largest phosphate factory. Clift & Ryder,
King & Spearman, Peter Troit, Taylor & Sharp
bave been prominent carringe-makern. John Serib-
ner, blacksmith, years ago made the bolts, serews and
neils that were nsed in vessel-bnilding at Milford,

Merchants,—Nathan Adams took up land at Mill-
stone Landing, now known as the New Wharf, in
1774, and iz mentioned as a merchant. Adams' heirs
gold this property to Benjamin Parker. Among the
early and well-rememhared merchants were Molton
Rickards, 8quire Bamuol Rateliffe and Walter Sipple
(who were in partnership), Wm. Borden {who owned
the property now owned by Geo. 8. Adkin’s heirs),
Jacob Biddle, John Wallace, Martin Dewaile, Daniel
Godwin, John M, Darby, Lowder Laytow, Walker
Sipple, Benjamin Potter (was a moerchant and tan-
ner), Peter T, Causey and son, Gov. Peter T. Causey,
Abner Dill, Benjamin Waddams, Rev. Truston P.
McColley (hatter and merchant), Peter Griffiths, Isaac
Lofland, Curtis Watson, Bethuel Walson, Mitchell
& Warren, Ceorge Buchanan, Andrew J. McColley,
Josoph Bennett. About 1840 there were twenty mer-
chants doing business in Milford, avery one of whom
were solvent and worthy of credit.

Drug Stores,—Joseph 8. Bennett, the first droggist
in Milford, commenced in 1846 where Benjemin
Anderson hag a grocory-stora, He waz snceeeded by
Thninas Wallace, aud Themas R. Hammersley con-
ducted the business for him. Sherwood & Foulk
succeeded him; after Sherwood died Foulk sold his
inturest to Thomas Sherwood, a son of his former
portner, and started again where Dr. Marshall now
resides, in 1856, and in 1870 he remaved to his present
quarters in Watson’s block. Thomas Sherwood sold
to Thomas . Hammenrsley, who now has a drug-store
on Walnut Btreet. Dr. Marshal), Dr. Pratt and H. L.
Page now sclt drugs.

The house now owned by Wm. F. Causey, Eaq., was
built in 1750 by au Fnglishman by the name of Levin
Crapper. Gov. Rogers resided herain the early part of
the century,and is buried on this farn.. Lowder Layton
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was an early merchant in a little store which stood
where Peter F. Causey, Jr,, now lives. The farm
coutained gix hundred acres when Rogers owned it,
Tn 1849, Governor Causey purchased and refitted it,
and jt ia now one of the most desirable residences in
town. Of Lowder Layton’s sons, Caleb B. was asso-
ciate judge of Sussex County, and Garret S, was a
physician in Milford, and Joshus was a merchant at
Goorgetown.

Henry Hndson owned the land where South Milford
now stends, and had Jomes Johnson lay it off into
town lots in 1819. He built the brick house now
ocenpied by Widow Lemuel Draper. The building of
this house rnined him, financially, and Walker Sipple
purchased the property, from whom it pessed 1o his
danghter and John A, Hazard, who sold it fo Lemuel
Draper. After his failure, Henry Hudson kept the
hotel where Lowery now is,

Thomas Davis resided in Cedar Creek Hundred,
and was 8 member of the Legislature at one time,
Two of his sons resided in Milford, Ilobert M. was
Treasurer of the State of Delaware, and Thomas J.
Davis is a surveyor and conveyancet, and has mettled
& large number of estates.

Daniel Curry started the first peach orchard in the
neighborhood of Milford, and was laughed at by his
neighbors for go deing. He was also a grain dealer
and shipping merechant at Milford, Mary E,, his only
danghter, wos the wife of Gen, Torbert, She came into
possession of her father’s real estate, and now reeides
at Milford.

Major-Genoral Alfred T. A, Torbert, son of Jona-
than R, Torhert, was born at Georgetown, July 1,
1833, He was educated ab the home school and
‘West Point, graduating in 1855. He was with Gen-
eral A. 8, Johnston in his campaign againat the Mor-
mons in Utah. At the breaking out of the Rehellion
he helped to organize the New Jersey troops, and was
commissioned colonel of the First- Regiment of New
Jersey Volunteers, Beptember 16,1861, by Gov. Olden,
and served with the regiment during the Peninsular
Campaign., In April, 1864, he was appointed briga-
dier-general in command of the First New Jersey
Brigade. May 4, 1864, he was assigoed to the first
division of cavalry under General Bheridan. He did
gallant service at Winchester, and in many other hard
fought battles; subsequently he was promoted to
brevet major-general. He married in Jamunary, 1866,
and resigned his command in the army, and came to
Milford to live, in the home of his bride., In 1889 he
was appointed minister to San Balvador, where he re-
mained nearly two years uotil 1871, when he was
appointed consul-general to Havana, and in 1873
consul-general to Puaris. Afler his return home he
devuted himself to his private affairs, and was ou his
way to Mexico on private business when he was ship-
wrecked, his body being washed ashore on the coast
of Florida. He is buried in the Methodist cemetery.

Nelson Rickards moved from Georgetowo to Mil-
ford about 1837, aud etarted the chair-making business,
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which he followed for meny years. Perry P. and
James B. sturted carriage-making, which the former
gtill continues,

Bethnel Wataon, son of [sase Watson, who patented
land in Hussex County in 1780, lived in Cedar Creek
Hupdred, Jewse Walzon, son of Eethnel, married
Rachel Uolling, and their son Beninb eame to Milford,
and enguged in the mereantile business. He tosk his
son Curtis into parthership with him, and after kis
death, in 1844, Curtis and his brother Bethucel engaged
in merchandising wntil the latter died. Curiis M.
Watson not only engaped exiensively in merchandis-
ing at home, bot also in the export trade, As many
ns twenty shipe traded from this porl thien, and Jarge
guantivs of quercitron hark, whicls brought us high as
uinety dollars per ton in Burope, were exportod,

Hia life is worthy of more than passing notice.
He wus horu December 8, 1809, in Cedar Creek
Hundred, Bussax County, Delaware, three miles south
of Milford. Tlis grandfither Jesse Wailson was a
native of the sume hundred, where he lived and diedl,
Bt the advanced nge of nloety years, aml his grand-
mother at eoighty-seven years. Jesse Watson had
three wsons, Jeremizh, David and Beuiab, and one
daughter, who married aml moved west. Liepiah, the
youngest aon and the father of Curtin 5. Watson,
early in life learned the carpenter’s trade but after his
murringe with Klizabeth Shockley, engapged for a
time in farming in Cedar Creek Hundred, and nwned
o saw-mill, which he operaterd. Tha children of
Beniah and Elizabelh Watson were Curtis S,
Catharine, Ann, Dethuel and Neniak.

Curtin 8. Walson was the eldest child. Tle
obtained his education iu the schuols near his home,
and at the Milford Academy, romaiuving on his
father's farm until he wea nincteen years old. He
then entered n store at Millord es a clerk, When he
attnined the age of Lwenty-one years, his fauther and
he, in 1831, engaged in the metcantile busiuess in
Millord, as the firm of B, Watson & Soin. This
co-partnership continued for ten yramy, when his
fatlier on account of incrensiog age, rvetired. Mr.
Watson then took info the business, as partner, his
hrother Bethuel, nod the firm name was changed to
C. 8 Watson & Uo., They carried on a general
business which graduelly grew and developed and
becama very prolitibie. These nperations included
net only the huying eml selling of store gnmils, but
dealing in real estate, grain, lime, lumber, fertilzers,
and other urticles, by which they supplied numerons
customers, residing in town and over = large cxtent
ot the surrounding country.

A number of tracts of land were purchased con-
taining valnable timber which wae cut down and
mach of the wbite pak lumber used in the constrac-
tion of vessels, Withia fifteen years, (. B, Watson
& Co. bad built at Milford, fiftcen vessels rangiog
froon sixty to twe liundred tons burthen, These ves-
sels they used in ehipping the grain, bark, staves and
lumber to Philadelphin and New York., All the
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merchandise sold in Lhe store was billed w4 & relurn
curgo, They also brooght lime from the Hudson or
North River on the return trip and sold it here to the
farmers of the vicinity.

In 1856, C. 8, Watwon & Co. retired from the gen-
erul merchandising buginess, Dethuel, the junior
member of the frm died the next year. Curtis B.
Wateon then engaged in buying and selling grain,
guane and phosplintea which he continued with great
gnceess fur B guarter of & century at Milford, He
retired from busineds in 1882 to attend to hia iarge
landed interest in Kent aod Bussex Countiea aggre-
guting in all two thowsensd five hundred acres. Tho
farma which he wow owns, he purchased at various
times with means he acenmulnted through his rare
ubility as a husiness wnan. In addition he owos three
store buildinga and the post-office building on
Walnut Btreet and his lurge residence vo Front
Streel in Milford.

Inu 1876 Curtis 8. Watsan was one of the organizers
of the First National Bank of Milfurd and hus since
beecn o member of the board of directors of that
inatitution, e served ns & member of the board of
town cummissioners for ten years; and was president
of the bnard several terma.

Hu was fifleen yenrs a director to the Junction amd
Breakwater Hailrond, ltomr Harrington to Lewes.
Tn polilivs ho hus alwaya heen a staunch demoerat,
Hia Hrst presidentinl vote was cast for Audrew Jack-
aon, in 1832, uud he has since votod pt every presiden-
tinl election for the candidate of his parly. le was
elected & ropresentative to the Legistature in 1859,
and re-elected in 1801, serviog in all, four yearn,
Frow 1871 to 1875, he represented Keul County in
the Btate Heoate. TFor filty years lie has been a
member of the Methodist Episcopsl Chorch of Mil-
ford aod « trustee nmd slewsrd for & long peried. He
is a Jiberal supporter of the church and devoted to
its interesly and to the cause of religion. lHe was
made a Mason half & century ago, in Temple Lodge,
No. %, of Milford, und became a Royal Arch Mason,
thirty years later.

In 1840 Mr. Watson, made his frat vinit to Sura-
togn, New York, then a snall villinge. Every year
since that time he lLaa spent whout sixty-five days of
the hot suminer months nt that now famous plesauro
resort, making in all forty-seven visits in forty-seven
Years,

Mr. Watson was married, January 5 1333, to
Harah, davghter of Thomas Iravis, of Cudar Creek
lnndred, by whom he had seven childreo, all sona.

Hin wife died Novemher 5, 1851, Their surviving
chtildren are Beniah Watson, atiaroey at law, practic-
ing sl Dover, Delaware, aud Dr. R. Y. Watson, the
present postmuster af Milford.

Curtis 8. Watson wns married, July 27, 1853, to
Lydia A. White, daughter of Ueorge Whito, of
Miltord.

I’eter F. Causey and Dr. Lofland hed mills for
grindiog quercitron or osk bark. D. H. Holland
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started general merchandizing where Hume has his
hardware store in 1837, thence he romoved to a store
which stands nearly opposite where he is now, and in
1880 he ceme to his present location, He took his
mon, Joseph I, into partnership with him, and has
since done o leading business, and is nnw the mer-
chantof the longest standing in the place. John Jnmp
commenced about the same time that Holland did,
aud discontinued recently., Randall Williams and
Henderson Colling, William €, Williams and Benjamin
Potter, who lelt a will giving his property to the poor
of Kent Connty, outside of the peor-honse, were all
merchants in Milford, Noah Lofland was one of the
firgt hatters here, and his son, William, whom Ander-
son succeeded, and T. P, McColley worked at the
businesa,

Benjamin Anderson commeneced the hatter business
in 1836, and was ono of the last hatters in the state,
when he discontinued in 1860. After ho stopped
making hats, ho associated his son with him in the
dry-goods business,

In 1878 Benjamin Anderson started the present
grocery hnsiness. Alexander Pullen started tho nur-
sery business in Milford, in 1870. He has since asao-
ciated James F, Anderson in the business with him,
and they gell from two to three hundred thousand
peach trees yearly, beside ten thonsand apple and five
thousand pear trees, vines and berries. Hall & Son
are also doing & large bnsiness,

The railroad takes considerable hisinese from the
shippers hy water. Thelargest importation by vessel
is material for fertilizers, and coal. The out-going
vessels carry pine and onk wood and piling, also oak
timber for ship building. George ITall and D. H.
Holland are principally engaged in shipping wood.

John Pettigrew came to Milford (rom Scotland, and
wus 8 soldier of the Revolution, TIe owned the
property where James M. Hall now rosides. He
married Ann McNeill, and had three daughtcrs—Ann,
wife of Dr. Greer, Margaret, wife of Dr. Joseph Sud-
ler, and Leah, wife of J. Millechop. Of Millechnp’s
daughters, Bally wos the wife of Hzekiel Cowgill;
Margaret married Elias Nandain; Ano married Pur-
nell Hall, a farmer aud cabinet-maker; Mary @G,
married John Greer; Lavinia R. married Dr. Kars-
ner, and Clara M. married James C. Wilson,

Governor William Thurp was born November
27, 1808, and died January 1,1865. His great-grand-
father was John Tharp, of Bussex Connty, England,
who settled in Kent County, Delawure. His son,
William married Ruth Clark, and their son James
married Eunice Fleming. Their son, William (the
Governor), had a family of daunghters thst married
and settled in Milford and vicinity, Ruth is the
mother of Willium Watson, and Williamina is the
wife of C, J. Hall, lately Clerk of the Peace for Kent
County,

Miss Harriet McNatt, who was born with the cen-
tury, andis the last of her family, has a very clear
recollection of events that took place in the early his-
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tory of the town. Her grandfather, Richard Dela-
ner, was one of the early mettlers and owned a large
tract of land on the road to Harrington, at Delaner's
Cross Roads, about three and three-fonrths miles from
Milford. He wns a large planter, and carried on store
keeping and a tavern, He was an Irishman by hirth,
and fought for the Americans all throwgh the Revolu-
tionary War, He died in 1810, aged cighty-one.
Ile had two sons—Levin H. and John, and a dangh-
ter, Mary, the wife of Major McNatt, and TTurriet R.,
now aged eighty-seven, is the only surviving member
of tho family, Her mother remombered when there
were only three houses ju Milford—Joseph Oliver's
house, which stood where Colonel Watson and Mra.
Ruth Carlisle’s resideuce now stands, then called
Oliver's Landing ; William Sordons, & merchant, nnd
Tsaiah James, atanner. Afterwards, William Brinckle
lived where James Truitt lives, and carried on tan-
ning. He was veryaged when he died. His children
were William; John and Mary, wife of Dr. John
Adams. Thomas Collina had a large family, all of
whom are dead or have moved away.

The first achool Miss MceNatt attended was in 1808,
near her grandfather Deluner’s. It was kept in a log
#chool-house with an earthen floor, with planks nround
the outside for desks. The Quakers had a meeting-
house where Rosa lives. (Yauladett Oliver and John
Thomas were Friends. The former had three sons—
Joseph, Thomas and Panl, and several daughtars,
Ann, wifeof William Godwin, Governor Rogers, Goy-
ernor Tharp, Governor Bnrton and Governor Causey
all resided here, David Waulton aud Colonel Hall
were cabinet-makers, Hamuel Ratcliffe livedin South
Milford years ago, in a little red house,

Horers.—Daniel Godwin bnilt the brick part of
the Lowery House, it being the first three-atory build-
ing in the place. He kept the hotel o uumber of
years and was superintendent of the stage route from
Wilmington to Seaford. He also engaged in the mer-
centile husiness, and built the house now owned by
A. B. Cooper. He was also a local Methodist
preacher, His gon, Willlam, became commission
merchant in Philadelphia, and Frank wea president
of the Corn Exchange, in the same city, Daniel C,
wag in partnership with his father many years. Bam-
nel I'. founded the Franklin Reformntory TTome, in
Philadelphia, and is its president. Peter F. Caussy
purchased this property and sold it to Justus Lowerey,
the present proprietor, Joseph Walton first leased the
Stine lot on Sentember 18, 1786, and in 1792 he made
a lease for a ground rent for $8.18. Walton and
family built and occupied this lokscveral years, Mar-
tin Dewaile, a IFrenchman, came into possession of the
property, and his widow kcpt a hotel there, The suc-
cessive owners since have been William A, Mygait,
Levi Harris, John W. Jump and Richard F. Stine,
who has erected u fine brick hotel. J. C. Shockley
kept this hotel for twenty years.

PrYsIcTANS.—Dr, Joseph Sndler way one of the
first physicians in the place; he married a daughter
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of John Pettigrew. De. Jumer I Lodlani], Gov. Bur-
ten, M.D. and Dr. Jamea B, Mitchell, were the three
leading physicians for many years. Dr, Owen, was
wlpo an early phiyaicinn,  Dr, Juhn 8, Prettyman cume
to the village when B young mun and in connectiu
with lis son s still practicing ieve, Dr, Nathan Pratl,
Dr. Mark 4. :Leflund, Dr, J. () Picrce, are among
later phiysicianie, Dr, J. I Strong, was the firnt Honpo-
pithic phyeician in the place; he built the residence
now neeupied by J, B. Bmith.

There nre eight physiciuny practicing melicine in
Milford, Dr. Wm. Marshall and son, I (. W,
Marshull, Dr. J. W, Purneli, Dr. Nathan Prutt, D
J, U. Dlierce, John 8. Preltyman and sun, Joha
Pretltyman, Dir. J. G. Dawson, who has eue of the
finest collection of Indign relies to be (onnd outside
of the Smithsenian Inatitnte,

Dy, James R Miichell wax born in Curolise County,
Maryland, in 1806, aod moved to Milford with: hia
perents when e was one year old, e was educated
here anid read medicine with Dr, Burten, of Milford,
wnd nttended the University of Maryland, e lucated
in Millord, and had & successful practice for foriy
yoar,

I"arnell Lotland, lived and died in Milford. ITe
had Lwo ehildren by his fivst wife, Mury Bebinson,
Dr. Jumea R. Lofland aud llizahath, wife of Spencer
Willinms, who was eaghier of the Commercind Bank
of Miltorid, s second wile wan Areadia Burton,

OrF his childeen by his second marriage, Purnell
was 0 inerchant, and alicetenant in tho Mexican War,
Mary was the wife of Bumuel Harringum, and Ann
warried Austin.

Dr. John Owens, a native of Nanticoke Huon-
dred, Busex Couuty, was born in 1787, al Ht.
Johinstown,  He studied medicine with Dr, Jos,
Sudler, nud gradusted st the Univeraity ol Ponasyl-
vunin, in 1818, e practived medicine i Milford
and Frederica for many yewrs in the presenl century,
11is wife was Mury, o danghter of lsaiah Juines, one
of the imt settlem, aml wan constilered o grent belle
in her day. Dr. Owens wis a charler member and
firat gecretary of Temple Loedge, (kne of hia sons,
Frederick J., lecame n phywicinn,

Cliurles T. Fleming, son of Benizh Fleming, wos
born in Mispillion Hundved, about seven wmiles from
Milford, in 1844, is dercended fram William Fleming,
who ceme tu Mispillion Hundred, from Scotlaud,
in 1740, and took np four hundred acres of land.
Charles T, came to Millord in 1827, and in 1834
commenced swrveying; haviog collezted the old sur-
veys of James, William and Maonlove Johoseo, he
became the most coupelent surveyor in this part of
the stute, and Ie has done considerable conveyancing,
He was notury  publie, anl commissioner of deeds for
New York, fur many years; for Jorly years he was ngent
for 1he Furmers’ Mutual Fire Insurance Compnny,
In 1837, he was o Whig member of the legisluture,
Originally = Presbyterizgn, he joined the Methodist
chureh during the tinme there wns no Presbyterian
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chnreh in the pluce. In 1883, My, FPleming laid oat
in building lots, cight or nine acres belonging to
Frank Rickardy, situuted in the northenatern part of
the town, which are now (1887} laygoly occcupied by
dwellipgy,

CUolunel Thomas eterkin wuas u baclielor, & very
demoenstrative man, with decidod econvictions, irne Lo
the cause he enpoused, nnd proverbially honesl, Joha
W. Redden was & carringe-maker bere. He merried
Catherine, 0 daughter of Gulandetts Oliver. They
removed to Natches, Mississippl, in 1820, William
Brinckie, Jr., son of Willium Drinckle, Sr., was buen
in Miliurd. Johr P Brinchle wos s lawyer at Gearge-
town, where he died quile young,

Mirroxp Bripee.—In June, 1783, Ru act was
pssed to enable Juseph Oliver, of Kent {lounty, to
erect n bridge over Mispillion Creek,  1n 1791 this
act was repualed und the following way enncted:
“Whereas, the dmw-bridge over Mispillion Creek
on thie pnblic rond leading fron the village of Milford
intu the county of Sussex halh become ol grent
utility to the inhabitents of Kentand Susiex Coun-
ties, hence it wun pro vided that esch county should
pay halfl of the expenses of keeping and repuiring
tha bridge nnd Iease Davis and John Halstan, of
Kent, Iapicl Rogery and Nathenicl Hayes, of Sus-
sex, were appointed comnigsioners W cerry ont the
provisions of the act.  The uct further provided that
the bridge belween abutments should be thiry-five
fect, niveteen feet of which shiould be n draw or piat-
form eighteen feet wide with good and sufficient
chains lor reining and lowering Uie soe, o provisiun
thnt was ngecessary when vessely nacended tho Mis-
pillitm W & point above the bridge.”

Hrresy Lientisa ann FIre Derartssnr.—An
ack to regulate aud light the streets of Milford win
pupped February 5, 1807, This act wes snbsequently
repenled. Now the streets are Dbeing lighted by
electric light. Milford Houk 2nd Ladder Company
was organized in February, 1869, with Mark 7, Lof-
land, president ; Heuben A. Hteward, vice-president:
T, . Fossett, sccretery ; Jnstis lowery, tressurer;
William 3. Lowery, fire marabnl. The company
contained wbout twenty meinbers,

Banxs—~Ilins Shockley owned a conlrolting inLer-
ext iu the old Commereial Bank, o was largely en-
gaged in merchandising and gave his nome as securily
too {reely cunsing his fuilure, and the bank went
down with him, After Lhis fuilure the Smyros Dunk
eatablished & brancl office ad Millord and did hanking
buxinesa bere until the establisbment of tho present
bank. The Fiest National Bank of Milford wus
chartered July 27, 1876, ’Tle first board ol directors
were H, B, Filddemao, C. 8, Watson, M. It Cnrlisle,
James R, Lotland, George Ruasseli, Robert M. Davig,
Jumen H. Deputy, U, J. Hurrington, James M, Hall,
‘T'he ficat vilicers were FL, 13, Fiddenzan, president ; J. B,
Bmith, coshier, xnd Twaue 5. Truitd, leller. YW IR, Allred
ix the present teller. 1% J. Davig, Creorge S, ricer and
Jo B. Smilh are nmong the direclors now,  Acconling
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to report in 1887, the cash capital of the bank is sixty
thousand eight hundred dollars; snrplus, thirty-five
thousand dollara; undivided profite, $11,659.58.

fcHO0LS.—William Johnson hought the lot now
owned by C. W. Davidson in 1787, and lived and
died there. He was a surveyor and oue of the first,
if not the firet, school teachers in the place. Like all
the schools here, up to 1832 it was a private school.
Iu Johnson's note-book the following notices appear:
Thursday, March 25, 1788: “ Notice is taken that
James Tralu called William Russclla liar. Witnees,
William Pope.” “Nolice is taken that Peter Robin-
gon was absent from the school till the evening."
“ Notice is taken that James Train came to an engage-
ment in school this evening” A aystem of pri-
vate schools has been continued with varying success
until the present time, A private school or academy
wag held in the Masoos’ building for many years. In
1832 the first public-schuol in the northern part of
the town was held in the house now owned hy J. .
Smith, and Willism Dickinson was the first teacher;
this building was sold to Captain Jamcs Thumpenn
and the Masonic building was purchased for publie
schoel purpeses in 1846 and was nsed until 1887 when
it was remodeled and enlarged, There ir also a pubdlic
scheol in Bouth Milford,

Daniel 8. Ells, superintendent of North Milford
public schools, January 16, 1887, repnrted as follows :
The value of the school property is two thousand
dollars with four teachers and cune hundred and
twenty-three pupils. Charlos W. Allen, principal of
the Sonth Milford School, reported that the school
property is worth forty-five hundred dollars; amount
of mouey raised by tax, eightecn hundred dollars;
amount of moncy teceived from the State, cight hun-
dred dollars; amount paid for teachers’ esularies,
cighteen bundred and niunety doilars. Tho echool is
in oporation nine months in the year wilh an averago
altendance of one huudred nud forty-two pupils out
of two hnndred and twenty-one, the whole number
on the roll.

The Milford Female Inatitute was conducted by Rev.
Mr. Kennedy for six or seven years. Mr. Kennedy
was pastor of the Presbyterian Church at the time,
and desiring to educate his own family he started &
gchool for females where the common branches, lan-
guages and music were taught, and many of the the
yonng ladies of Milford were here educated.

Soc1RTIES.— Kirkwood Encampment, No. G, was or-
ganized Beptember 4, 1850, with the follnwing charter
membhers : Thomas Wallace, Joseph H. Bennett, John
H. Denning, Joseph C. Gorby, Robert H. Clark, John
8. Mocdy, William C. Welsh, Joseph L. Linderman.

Milford Grange, No. 6.—The first grange in the
Btate wad organized in Weat Brandywine, in 1874, by
Mr. Hamilton, then residing in California. Milford
Grange was organized the same year, with John G.
Roea as the first master. There are from thirty to
forty members in the Milford Grrange at present, Mr.
Rosa resides where the old Triends’ meeting-house
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formerly stood, and is one of the most enterprising
farmers in the vicinity.

Temple Lodge, No. 9, A. F.and A. M., was organized
in Milford, Jan. 16, 1815. This lodge was organized
by General Jesse Gireen, who was the first Master.
The other officers were John Mitchell, Sr. W.; James
Millechop, Jr. W.; Colonel Thomas Peterkin, Treas-
urer ; Dr. John Owens, Becretary ; John W. Redden,
f. D.; William Brinckle, Jr, J. D. The Masters
gince the organization up to 1846 have been Jesse
Green, James Millechop, Jr. (five iimes), John
Mitchell, Johu W. Rcdden, Dr. Jamea B. Lofland
(thirty-eight times), Spencer Williams, Joseph . O.
Oliver, Edward Collins, Benizh Wateon, William M.
Godwin, Liston A. Honston, Dr. William Burton,
William F. Revill, Daniel C. Godwin, They met in
4 building, part of which is the present public school
building, until about 1846, A private school was con-
ducted in this building for many yoars, and it is said
that & number of poor children, some nf whom have
since become prominent, were educated at the expense
of the Masoos. This ledge was the parent lodge of a
number of other lodges in the vicinity.

Crystal Fount Lodge, No. 10, L 0, of O. F., wad or-

ganized February 10, 1847. The charter members
were Joseph 3. Bennett, Joseph C. Gorby, Samuel
P. Godwin, John H. Denning, Joseph L, Linderman,
all of whom are still living but Linderman. During
its existence til! 1887 the lodge has paid $7079 bene-
fits to sick membera; for burying the dead $6502; re-
lief of widows and children sbout $700; onteide
charities $693. Prescnt assetd $5816.28, One mem-
ber, J, G. Foulk, has been Grand Master of the
State. Three members—J. &, Foulk, Alexander Hall
and Bamucl M. Bimpler, have becn representatives to
the Sovereign Grand Lodge. The present member-
ship is forty-nine. In 187% ground was purchased
and the benntiful Odd Fellows’ cemetery was sur-
veyed into burial lots, Since the organization of the
lodge nearly every puhlic celebration in the town has
heen managed by the order.

Rrricrovs MATTERS.— Christ Church, 1704-1887.
—The Rev. Thomas Crawford, a missionary of the
English * Society for the Propagation of the Gospel
in Foroign Parts,” stationed at Dover, is believed to
have held the first service of the Church of England
in the lower part of Kent County, in the year 1704,
The congregation then worshipped at a place three
miles west of the present town of Milford, though it
is not known in what year the first cburch huilding
was erected, or precisely where it stood. As early as
1745 a small wooden chapel, supposed to have been
the second edifice of the kind, thirty-six feet long by
thirty feet wide, was bnilt at the point known as
Church 1Till. This building iz meutiicaed in the
missionary reports under the name of Chrisé Church
BMispillion, though it was popularly called “The Bay-
annah Church,” on account of aswamp near by, or,
perhaps, to distinguish it from “the Thres Huns meet-
ing-lonse ” of the Presbyterians, situated twe miles
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further down the creek. Al this date, the English
minister stationed at Dover, and officiating also at
Mispillion and Duck Creek, was the Rev, Arthur
Usher. He was succeeded by the Rev. Hugh Neil,
who, in turn, was followed, in 1757, by the Ttey, Chas,
Inglis. At the end of a successfnl administration
of six years, Mr. Inglis was called from this fleld to
the rectorship of Trinity Church, New York. The
next name on the list of ministers is that of tho Tev.
“amuol Magaw., With his removel terminated the
fostering care of the Vencrable Propaguation Bociety
over the English (hurches of Kent County. Trom
this time the Mispillion Church appears to have had
a separnte existence and history.

Tn 1773-75 the Rev. Bydenham Thorne arrived and
took up his residence near Church Hill. Mr. Thorne,
like his predecessor in the rectorship, was probably of
English birth and educaiion, though he came to this
County from Virginia. Besides having considerable
ability as a scholar and preacher, he wus also distin-
guished for the refinement and elegance of his man-
ner. Wealthy, benevolent and public-spirited, he was
gaid, by one who well remembered him, to have heen
the most influential man of the county; und this,
notwithstanding his political und religious prineiples
of unconcealed loyalty te the Xiung aud Chureh of
England,

In the year 1777 Mr. Thorne came intn possession
of the farm on the west side of Mullet Run, a little
stream which empties into the creek two miles cast of
Church Hill. This property was suhsequently owned
by his nephew, Peter Caverly, then by James Clayton,
and alterwards hy thelate Benjamin Potter, who, at hisg
death, devised it to hig grand-nephew oand namesake.
On this land the parson, in 1779, erected the large and
imposing brick honse, known as the Thorne Mansion,
—almost the only relic of the last eentury which has
been allowed to remain without alteration to the
present day. Among the parishioners of the Bavan-
nah Church was Joseph Oliver, who owned the farm
extending from Mnllet Run, a quarter of a mile east-
ward, towards another land mark on the bank of the
Migpillion, called the High Hill. At the instance of
the parson, or mainly nnder his direction, it is said,
Oliver about this time divided his land, or a large part
of it, into town lots and streets. Of these lots two
were given for the use of the parish church and grave-
yard; and here, in 1791, waa laid the foundation of
the present Christ Chureh, Milford. Much oppo-
sition was made in certain quarters to the removal of
the house of worship to anothcr site, aud, in conse-
quence, some of the members refused nr withheld
their assistance in the new enterprise. Dut notwith-
atanding this drawbuck, the boilding went on until
the walls were raised and roofod in, the parson him-
self paying the cost of the hrick, which were made
of clay dug from Oliver's land, and burned in a kiln
three hundred yards north of the church. The sills,
rafters, benms and girders were constructed out of
treea grown on Mr, Thorne's farm, cut down and
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hewn at hia expense, and, when necessary, sawed into
shape at his owy mill. The death of this zealons man,
February 14, 1793, interrnpted the building of the
chiirch, and the work remnined at s standstill for more
than a quarter of B centnry.

As originally designed, the edifice was of twosteries,
having galleries on the north, west and sonth sides,
and the Commnnion Table on the east. The pews
were made with high and straight backs, and the pnl-
pit was a guaint-looking aMair, shaped like n chnlice,
and surmounted by o lofty canopy or sounding-beard.
It was placed in the east wall, over the holy table, so
that the preacher might look into the gallories as well
as upon the audience in the pews beneath, The in-
side of the building, designed to be finished in a semi-
circle, seems never to have been carried any furiher
than the putting in of the arched pieces intended to
hold up the ceiling. It was not until the year 1835
that the original chnreh thns begun in 1791 by parson
Thorne, was entirely completed.

The next minister of the parish was the Rav.
William Pryce, who officiated nntil 1800, He then
removoed to Wilmington and became the rector of
Trinity Chorch {Old Bwedes), in that town. Seven-
teen yeurs later the church was again nnder the
charge of the Dover minister, the Rev, Henry R,
Judnh, nntil 1819, when the Rev. Joseph Spencer
waa made master of the academy in Milford, and, in
connection with this position, rector of the parizh,
Mr. Spencer, afterwnrds doctor of divinity, resigned
thesc offices in 1522-28, and was appointed principal
of the UUniversity Grammar School, Philadelphia.
RBervices were now maintained till 1830 by the Dev.
Daniel TTighoc; and three vears later than this date,
began the rectorship of the man who wus destined to
complete the building of the temple whose founda-
tion had been laid by the lamcnted Thorne, nearly
a half century before. The Hev, Corry Chanthera
was an Irishman, and graduate of Trinity College,
Dublin, who hed been but a few years in this
country, and was previonsly settled in Lewistowu,
Pennsylvania. An encrgetic man and a popnlar
preacher, he soon succeeded in bringing together and
adding to the fock, scattered and discouraged since
the departure of Parsoo Higbee, until the church
was filled again, on Bundays and at othor religious
festivals, with an interested and devout assembly.

During Mr, Chunbers’ ministry, & new roof was
put om, the galleries and pews received their first cout
of paint, aad the pulpit wus adorned with hangings
and npholstery of erimson silk, in the most approved
style of the day. It is related Lhat, just after these
extensive improvements were completed, and hefore
ever a gervico had heen held, the new roof in somae
unaccountable manner suddenly took five. The
accidont, by good fortune, happoned at midday, and
an alarm brought swiftly to the spot a score of inter-
ested citizens, by whose willing help the flames were
extinguished in a fes moments, anud before any con-
sidernble dumage had been done.
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A pertinent illustration of the old adage, * to strike
while the iron is hot,” waa afforded, on this occasien,
by Mr, Chambers, who, thinking the opportunity too
gnod to be lost, immediately after the fire, opened on
the spot a snbscription paper for repaira, and with
tears in his eyes, went about among the bystanders,
goliciting money; nntil presently, he hod received
contribntions and pledges amounting to iwice as
much o8 was regnired to maeke good the damage.
I'he church, now entirely finished dnd furnished, was,
in 1836, consecrated to picus nses by the Rt. Rev.
Henry 0. Onderdonk, provisional bishop of tho
diocese of Delaware.

Soon after this date, Mr. Chambers was succeeded
by the Rev. John Reynolds, who remained in charge
till 1848, meanwhilo snpplementing his slender salary
by giving instruction to the yonng people of the town
and others, at the Midford Academy. ’

In the following year the church fell to the pastoral
care of the Rev. John Linn McKim. This gentls-
man, & native of Carlisle, Pennsylvania, was gradu-
ated at Dickinson College, in the c¢lass of 1830, and
had been a pupil there of Doctor Joseph Bpeucer,
sometime rector of Milford, and afterwards professor
of Ancient languages in this institution. Mr, Me-
Kim was himself a thorough classical nnd mathe-
matical scholar., Like his predecessor at Milford, he
was master of the ocademy as well as rector of the
church. His learning was said to be accurate, varied
and extensive, and he was especially remarkable for
the rare power he possessed of adapting his sermons
to the character and needs of those who heard thom.
A man of singularly pure life, of gentle manners and
cultivated taste, he deserves to be ranked with Inglis,
Magaw, Thorne and other worthies whose names are
destined to be held in grateful remembrance as long
ag the parish shall have & history to rocord.

By the choice of the vestry and congregation, the
rectorship now descended from father to sou; and, in
1868, the Ttev. John Layton MecKim began his
ministry in the venerable church. A native of Dela-
ware, and a graduate of the Unijversity of Pennsylya-
nin, it iz a point interesting in this connection, thab
he received his academic degree precisely a century
aftor his predecessor, Mr. Magaw, who had graduated
at the same collego in 1757. The coincidence goes
further; for he alap came to the parish just a hundred
years later than his illustrious fellow-alumnus, Like
him, too, he seems to have had a faculty for tenching,
and devoted a large part of his time to this profession.
The most successful teachers often prove to be alze
the rmost nseful clergymen, and the two offices have
been united in the case nf more than nne minister of
thia parish, who, but for the increased compcnsation
which followed, might hnve been compelled to “shake
the dust off their feet and depart,” even though the
people had been ever so willing to listen to their
instruction and submit to their administration,

During the ineumbency of Mr, McKim, the church
was enlarged by the addition of chancel, sacristcy
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and tower; the new work being carried on chiefly
nuder his own direction and supervision. But while
the ancient edifice was remodelled as to its reof and
genera! ontside appearance, the walls, gronnd-sill
and floor, wers allowed to remain as originally placed
by Mr. Thorra.

Mr. McKim resigned in 1880, and st this date the
parish is adminigtered by the Rev. James C. Kerr.
Uunder his judicions direction, the churech has lately
baen decorated in the best style of ecclesiological art,
and otherwise improved until if ia perhaps not snr-
passed in beauty and convenience hy any house of
worship in the stato.

Miiford Presbyterian Church—The Three Runs
Presbyterian Church ig supposed to have been organ-
ized in the latter part of the seventecnth or the first
part of the eighteenth century. If wos located on
the ground now eecupied by an old sbandoned grave-
yard and took its name from the Three Runs of the
Mispillion Creek. It was a frame structure with a
brick Aoor and was shandened as & place of worship
in the early part of the present century, Mise McNatt
remembers that her grandfather Delaner and family
worshipped here, Governor Tharp’s family also were
Presbyterians. The recorda are lost, but the follow-
ing election of trustees in 1819 has been preserved.
“At n meeting of the Presbyterian Congregation nf
Three Ruas held at Milford, Fanuary 11, 1819, Foseph
Hazlett, Robert P. Campbell, John SBhafer, Robert
King and William Satterfield were elected trnstees,”
The Raletons worshipped here also. When Rev. G,
W. Kennedy came to Milford in 1849, there were
only two members of this church remaining, Robsrt
King and hissister. Mr, King was a firm Calvinist
and devoted his life largely to the study of the Berip-
tures and theological works, and was liberal in giving
for religious purposes.

Tn 1849, the Preshytery of Wilmington inatrncted
Rev. G. W. Kennedy, an Evangelist, for the Freaby-
tery to visit Milford, and, if the way be open to
organize a Presbyteriau Church there. He visited
Milford and found only two Presbyterians, One was
the wifo of Governor William Tharp and the cther
was Miss Johnson afterwords BMrs, Primrose. In o
shorl time other Preabyterians moved to Milford and
a church was organized with seven membern, viz.:
Mr. und Mrs. William V. Coulter, Mm. Governor
Tharp, Mrs. Edward P. Morris, Mra. Purnell Lofland
and Mrs, 8, M. Kennedy, the pastor’s wife.

A move was mads at once to build a church, and
Governor Tharp, Coelonel, afterwarda (vovernor Chu-
gey, Dr, James P. Lofland and John Hazzard were
appointed & building committee, with Rav. George
W. Kennedy as chairman and financial agent, through
whdse untiring exertions a ncat and suhstantial brick
church and parsonage werc erected in 1850. At the
organization of the church, William V. Coulter wae
elected and ordained & ruling elder, subsequenily
Rufus K. Baynum and Robert C. Hall, were elected
and ordained elders. After a number of additions
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had been made to the church in March, 1866,
Rev. Mr. Kennedy resigned his posilion as stated
supply. The church remnined vacant until Novem-
ber, 1857, when Rev. John W. Mears, of Philadel-
phia was elected pastor. During the first year of his
pastorate, thirteen members were added to the church.
He repigned February 15, 1860, and November 14,
1360, Rev, J. Garland Harncd succeeded to the pastor-
ate and was installed. He resigned September 20,
1863. Then the Rev. L. P. Bowen, a licentiate, was
received as stated supply, and entered npon his duties
January 24, 1864. At this time there wero thirty-
four members. He resigned Janusry 28, 1866, and
waa succeeded by Rev, John F. Severance. At the
game time Colonel Henry B. Fiddeman, Henry J.
Hall and Jacob Y. Foulk, were elected ruling elders.
Mr, Severance was succeeded by Rev. Richard A,
Mallery, July 12, 1868, who died June 9, 1875, and
after an interval of a year, Rev. A, A. Dinsmore wns
elected pastor, Mesara, James B. Gilchrist and Ed-
win Hopkins were elected to the eldership, Mr,
Dinsmore closed his labors as pastor in November,
1875, and was succeeded by Charles F. Boynton, who
began his pestorate Febrnary 1, 1876. Ile resigned
in Jannary, 1879, and the pulpit was supplied by Rev,
8. K. Bchofield until February 1880, when Rev. H. L.
Bunstein became pastor and continues a8 such to
date, Beptember, 1887, During his pastorate, William
Marshall, M.D., John B. 8mith and Willinm A. Humes
were elocted ruling elders. There are at present on
the rnll of membership two hundred and ten namcs.

Mr. Bunsteiu was born in Esston, Iennsylvania,
August 18, 1844, produated at Lafayette College in
1864 and at Union Theological Beminary in 1872, Ie
was pastor of Clinton Btrest Preshyterian Chnrch,
Philadelphia, from 1872 to 1876, of Beech Creek Pres-
byterian Church 1877-1880, and was called to Milford
in Novemher 1879.

Methodist Episcopal Church at Milford —Qctober 18,
1787, Francis Asbory, in his journal, eays: “I had
divine aid in prenching at Milford, the house was open
and the day was cold.” Decemher 3, 1787, Joseph
Oliver deeded to Nathaniel Swmithers, Jr.,, Joscph
Aydelott, Willlam Ward, Tlias Bhockley, Thomas
Roxs, Reynear Williams, Willinm Beauchamp, John
Taylor and David Besuchamp, a lot containing four-
teen thonsand four hundred square feet “ for the use
and express purpose of building a preaching honse or
church thereon for the only proper use and benefit of
the religious rociety of people called Methodiats.”
Tuesday, October 22, 1789, Asbury eays: “ Rode to
Miiford ; we had a great imove and nohle shouting.”
Rev. Mr. Whatcoat was presiding elder here then.
Milford Circuit first appears in the minutes of the
Methodist Church in 1789, Thomas Jeckson and
William Rateliffe, preachers, Riehard Whatcosnt, P're-
siding Elder. The circuit must have embraced u larpe
amount of territory, as the membership reported is
eight liundred and seventy-nine whites ond two huo-
dred and thirty-sixz colored, The eurly records of
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Miiford Church arc not to be found, but from the
reeollection nf the oldest inhabitants it appears that
Somuel Draper, Julia Adkins, George 5. Adkins,
Henry Hudson and wife, Walker SBipple and wife,
Lowder Layton and wife, John R, Draper and wife,
Jabez Crocker and wife, Wesley Colling and wife,
Benjamin Henderson and wife, were prominent mem-
bers. Revs. James Bateman, Levi Btarks, George
Taylor, John D. Onins and Charles Carsner, are re-
membered. The latter had a great vevival in 1837
which was kept np night and day, and one hundred
and thirty-seven membhers were ndded to the chnrch,
Daniel Godwin, Molton Rickards, George Adkins,
Wesley Colling and Bamuel Draper are romembered
as class leaders. In 1865, dnring Rev. William An-
near’s ministration, there was a grent revival, and

‘mdny joined the church. There was another great

revival in 1874, during Rev. D, C. Ridgway’s pastor-
ate, and some tlirge hnudred joined the church,
ninety of whom were from the Bunday-school. The
first Methodist ehureh, which stood nearly opposite
where the present chnrch stands, was sold at pnblic
sale for $49.50. In 1840 the second church was huilt
on the site of the present church. Among the most
prominent snhscribers to the erection of this church
were Rev, Truston P, McColley, John M. Darby,
Peter F. Causay, John Rickards, William N. W, Dor-
sey, Bamuel Draper, G, 8, & W. Adkins, John Wal-
lace and family, Daniel C. Godwin, James R. Mitchell,
Charles T, Fleming, Henderson Collins, Purnell Hall,
Henry May, Elins Bmithers, George Primrose, Clem-
ent Clark, Jesse Sherwnod, Beniah Waison, James
H. Deputy. This second church and lot cost $4428,
35. The present church wag crected in 1871, at a coat
of $19,000. Willinm T. Vanls, Joseph 8. Truitt,
James . Deputy, William Welsh ond Peter F.
Causey, were committee. A party of nine gentlemen
bonght the old church and converted it into a pnblie
hall, The parsonzge was rebuilt at a cost nf’ $4000,
in 1883, A chapel has recently been hutlt in South
Milford through the instrumentality of Peter F.
Cansey, John C. IIall and Joshua Spencer, at a cost
of $2000, for Buuday-achool purposes. The Baptists
have recently organized a church in the town,
Roverend Jonatban Bpencer Willis, aon of William
Barnaby Willis and Mary 8pencer, waa born in Tal-
bot County, Maryland. His father served as sheriff
of Talbet County, was o member of the Maryland
Legislature fonr terms and was a very snceessful ag-
ricultnralist, Oxford John Willis, hie grandfather,
was cnstom-house officer at Oxford, Maryland, for a
period of forty years, when that place was a leading
port of entry and before DBaltimore developed into
n commercial town. Oxford John Willis was the
grandson of John Willis, the grandson of Sir Rich-
ard Willis, who came to Virginin early in her col-
onin] history, with the Fairfaxes and others who took
up large estates in Virginia. The subject of this
sketch is of the eighth generation in direct line of
decent from Sir Richard Willis. Mary Spencer, his
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memberahip is mentionad in the conference minutes
in 1789, This chureh was re-organized and made die-
tinctively colored at the time Bishop Scott re-organ-
ized the colored Methodist Churches throughout the
United States.

BirogBAPHICAL.—Rev, Trnaton P. McColley was
born March 9, 1793, and educeted at the country
schools. He become an apprentice to the hatter's
trade; was A merchant for some time and a local
preacher mauy yesra, ln 1832 he wus a delegite to
the Constitutienal Convention and made president of
that hody. He wis g useful mau in the comivnily
and the church, and died ot the age of eighty-oune,
One of his duughters, Angeline, became the wifa of
Dr. William Marshall who waos born in 1827, Dr,
Marshall was educated at Milton and sindied medi-
cine at JeMerson Medical College, He was surgeod
on the ghip “ Cluriesn Perking ™ that conveyed the
first of the 49 men to California. He worked
in the gold mines for a time and returned in 1851,
He was surgeon in the army and wounded in a skir-
mish, He was captain in the Bixth Delaware Regi-
ment. He removed to Milford in 1866, was secretary
to the State Board of Health and delegate to the
Ninth Internetional Congress of Thysicians. He
owna a large flouring-mill and iz otherwise inlerested
in husiness. His son, Dr. (. W. Marshall, was born
in 18564 and educated in Delaware College and Jefler-
son College, from which he was graduated in 1876,
He came home and married Mary L. Donneli and
has heen practicing medicine in Milford since that
time, The bouse where Dr, Marshall resides was
built by John Law in 1787. From John Law it
paesed to John Pleasonton, & merchant who had a
store therein. ILlins Shockley also had a store and
8 tavern. Polly Peterkin was murdered here by
8 man who married her for her money. 1t was the
0ld Commercial Bank huilding, and after its failure
the Bmyrna branch baok was here also,

CHAPTER LXYV.
BUSSEX COUNTY.

BussEx CoUNTY isthesonthernmost county of Dela-
ware, and hos an aren of shout nine handred and iy
squnre miles, It is bounded on the north by Kent
Couanty and Delaware Bay, on the south by Maryland,
on the enst by Delaware Buy and Atlantic Ocean, on
the weat hy Muryluml and Keot Counly, IL iz
drained by the Mispillion Creek, Cedar Creele, Prime
1laok Creek, Beaver Dawm Creek, ¢inel Spring (reek,
Love Creek, Middle Creek, Miry Creek, IFurry’s
Oreek, Indizra River, Irenr’ Creek, Peppor Ureok,
Turkey Creek, ITerring Creek, Amawminan Bay, I'oco-
muke River, Bhenls’ Creek, Giray’s Ureek, Liroad Ureek,
Coal Ureek, Tussocky Creek, Little Creek, Nanticoke
River, 1leop Ureek, Gum CUreek, Gravelly Creek,
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Clear Creek, 8t. Johr's Creek, Marshy Hope Creek
and the Delaware Bay and the Atlaptic Ocean.
The surface is nearly level, and a large part of
it is covered with foresls. The aoil is mostly fer-
tile, the ataple products being corn, wheat, cattls,
pork, lumber and potatoes. The county is inters
gected by the Delaware Railroad and the June-
tion and Breakwater Railroad, and contains thirteen
hnndreds as follows: Lewis and Rehobath, George-
town, Cedur Creek, Broadkiln, Indian River, North-
west Tork, Broad Creek, Nanticoke, Seaford, Little
Creek, Dngsborough, Baltimare and Gumborough.
The town of Georgetown, in Georgetown Hundred, ia
the county-seat.

The territory occupied by the present county of
Sussex was known in the seventeenth ceniury as
Hoorenkill, Horckill and Whorekill, and exiended
from DBowptics (Bombay) Hook to Cape Hanlopen
{(Fenwick Tslund)., The first settlement was on the
site of the presenl town of Lewea,

In 1668 Lientensnt Alexander De Hinijossa wad
given command of the Horekill, and was snceeeded
by Peter Alrichs, nephew of Vice-Director Jaeoh
Alrichs, a8 commandant, in 1660, The territory was
controlled by the Dutch authorities at New Amstel
(New Castle), and Peter Alrichs, by reason of his
ufficial position, obthived a monopoly of the trade
from Bompties Hook to Cape Henlopen, causing con-
siderable dissatisfaction among the inhahitante, who
complained tg the Vice-Director Willinm Beekman, of
Fort Altena, and he wrote to Direclor Stuyvesant.
Two years later, 1664, the territory passed into tke
posscssion of the English.

On April 22, 1685, Captain Martin Creiger, waus
granted permission fo trade in Delawnre Bay, and on
November 11, 1665, Peter Alrichs waa sallowed to
traffic ut Horekill fur “skins, peltry or what nther
commodities those parts wonld afford, he to make
entry with the officers at Delaware (New Castle} of
tho qnantity and quality of goods,”

On March 20, 1666, all duties on household goods
were discontinued on the Delaware River, and on
Octoher 22, 1670, on petition of the inhahitants, all
customs were abolished.?

Ou January 12,1670, a grant was mede to James
Millsfor a “neck of laod” lying ** to the southward
of the town called Whorekill” e was also given

i Pator Alriche Look up s trant of land o the Flurakill, while he
wan in commutul uwnder the Dulch, but o puatunt waa not nbialned,
wid, Bpon the eaptura of the terrliory by the Loglish, in {ned, all tha
land ko his pesssmhig, Buth D New  Castdo Connty and ol the Whore
kill, wnp cwnfigentad wmd Jator grnted by Governor Richunl Nlchole,
ig 1666, to Williag Tom, clork of the conpts "o Delawars," A tract
il e Whuorekill waa grantel o Tom, and hils nabee sppoars in 8 lid
of porsaie whoss gnil-rents npo stlil due, v fellown . " WIH Tom, st
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The last place any of us would choose for a
sight-seeing tour would be our own home town. If there
is one place we all know by heart it is Milford. And
yet it 1s sometimes possible not to see the woods for the
trees, and through looking at the same thing every day
not to see it at all. So we are going to do a kind of
travelogue in reverse and try to get a pictufe of the

town as it looked when it was young - young and small.

Most of you know that North Milford was the old
town and was a prosperous settlement long before South
Milford grew up. For many years there was nothing on the
southern side of the creek but the Crapper plantation, a
stretch of 1570 acres of land valued at $120,000, a large
fortune in that day. The plaﬂtation house, which we know
as the old Causey Mansion,»remains to this day, and is
still the,most beautiful residence in the town. It was
built about 1763 by Levin Crapper and was then a house of
two stories and a half with dormers in the roof, the back
of the house being what is now the front. It was Governor
Causey who raised the third story and gave the house the
stately classic lines it now has. Perhaps no house in
Sussex so perfectly represents Delaware civilization and
culture during the years before the War between the States
as this one. All the culture, all the hospitality and
open handedness of our ancient Delaware stock is enshrined
there and you have only to look to catch a glimpse of the
past. In one of the slave quarters lived the black Mammy

of the household. As she grew old she grew fat so that
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Mr. Oliver and offered to build a dam across the creek at
his own expense if Mr, Oliver would agree to lay out his

land in building lots. The agreement was made and both
projects were carried out. Then a grist mill was built where
the 0ld Red Mill stood and a saw mill farther up stream. By
1790 there were eighty buildings in the town, thus showing

a fairly rapid growth. When Mr, Thorne came here the church
stood at Church Hill about half way between here and Houston,
in fact the present highway passes over the old graveyard
that surrounded the church. Mr. Thorne was so sure of the
future of the town that he acéepted the gift of a town lot

from Mr. Oliver for the church and began the work of building

the present edifice although some of the congregation objecped
to the removal. He himself paid for the making of the bricks,
but in the midst of his work he died at the age of 45 years,
and the walls stood unfinished fop some twenty years. In
1789 Mr., OUliver also donated the land for a Methodist Church
and graveyard, a part of the foundation yet remaining in the
old yard on North Street across from the Milford Elementary
School., Whatever Mr, Thorne did was well done and in the
~best of taste. For his house he choose the most commanding
elevation we have, because, it is said, it resembled the
situxtion of "Shirley" in Virginia, the home of General Lee's
mother's family, the Carters. .although the pitch of the roof

was spoiled about 1880 and the old dormers removed, yet in

all other respects it is today one of the best colonial

survivals in the county, if not the very best. Filled with

handsome paneling and curious staircases it is a worthy
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memorial to its builder.

Mr. Thorne also built that row of brick dwellings
that stood about where Mr. wilson Vinyard's home now stands
and which most of us remember only in the last stages of
decay, yet, like all of his work there were well designed
and so. long as they stood, gave an 18th cenpury look to

Front Street. For a long time they were known as the

Mitchell Buildings, later as "Purity Row".

What is now the business section of the town was
then a corduroy road serving only as a passage to the bridge.
The business section was out West Front Street on the high
ground near Silver Hill., Here was the tan yard store, the
bark yards for quercitron bark, the vats for tanning hides,
cord wood and staves stacked for shipment out of the river,
and places for all the lesser trades that went with these,

As the tgwn grew the building we remember as the (Old National

Bank was built by Mr, Wadhams for a storehouse and dwelling.

He also built what is now the Mulholland Apartments as a two

- story tavern kept by Mrs. Hetty Starr and known as Starr's

Tavern. This tavern was then an important stopping place
for the stage line down state. Mrs. Starr is said to have
died of fright. Her son came home drunk, mounted on a
spirited colt, and rode up the steps into the hall., As she
opened the parlor door to see what the noise was the colt
reared in the well of the staircase and she died of heart
failure. When it came into the possession of Mr. Daniel

Currey it received its third floor and the general appearance
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it now has. The daughter of Mr. Curry married General
Torbert, our consul general at Paris and the most famous
citizen the house has ever had. It was here that Mrs.
Torbert waited for the return of her husband's body after
he was lost at sea in the wreck of the Vera Cruz, his
funeral having been the largest the town has ever seen. As
the town prospered all those stately homes in the Torbert

block sprang up and fortunately remain today pretty much as

they were in the beginning. In the old Hammersley house -
where the Collins in§urance'office‘is - may be seen what can
happen to these treasures when'they fall into intelligent
hands. No one has been more successful in sympathetic
restoration than has Mr. Collins both here and at the old
Carlisle house where he lives. Not only he, but the town
has a right to be proud of his work. Other very old houses
that have come down to us and are yet to be seen are the
Towers, ;nce a store, and now showing but little of its
original architecture, and Max willson's house which until
1850 stood on the southeastern corner of North Walnut and
Second Streets, and has been carefully preserved by the
Willsons. As to schools, the old .cademy, built in 1810,

was the most noteworthy and is yet to be seen in the older

portion of the Milford slementary school.

A new industry gave rise to South Milford. The
Town there grew up as the shipyards grew and prospered and
from 1820 to 1875 they showed a steady growth. At one time
there were seven yards in operation at once. Mr, Henry

Hudson laid out South Front Street parallel with the creek
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and convenlient to the yards and in many of the old houses
there the peculiar style of ship carpentry work amy be easily
recognized. Fortunes were made in shipbuilding. One of the
earliest firms was that of David Black, later there was
Carlisle and Reville, Truitt and Deputy, and yet later, Lank
and Reville, the Scribner Yard and Abbott and Company. Con-
sideriﬁg the size of the river really large ships were built,

some of 600 tons burden. All this activity caused the growth

of stores on Walnut Street and the foundation of the present
business section, although it long remained a street of stores
and dwellings interspersed, the old Marshall property being
about the last of these to go. Some of the houses on Front
Street show tne effect of this prosperity, notably the
Scribner house, now Colonel Lank's and the Hudson house,

now Mrs. Jennings. For many years there were wooden bars
across Carlisle Lane - the lane leading only to the Trusten
McCollevaarm. The 6ld McColley house still stands and Dr.
wWilliam Marshall is néw restoring it. It is remarkable for
its fine staircase and its curious second floor fireplaces.
No account of South Milford would be complete without some
mention of the old Causey Spriﬁg House. It stood near the
corner of Church Street and Causey Avenue, where the Short
lumber stacks now are, and was a place of resort for young
people on summer evenings. There were carved the heart
emblems with their intertwined initials. It was always said
that those who drank from this spring would never leave
Milford. The spring is gone but Mr. Joseph Holland moved

the spring house into his ygard where you probably remember
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it. Wwe can no longer drink from the spring, but those
who live here are usually confirmed Milfordians if not to
the extent of a certain old man they used to tell about,
whose feet began to hurt the minute he crossed the stream
at the Tub Mill and didn't stop until he came back on this

side and was again in sight of town.

It used to be the fashion to conclude with a moral

so that what we say to you now will serve in the old
fashioned way to point a moral and adorn the tale. That old
Roman saying - time destroys everything - is just as true
for us as it was for them. It is only when we resist and
make some organized effort that we are able to rescue some
spoils from the wreck of time: The buildings we have been
thinking of, some remarkable forf£heir architectural beauty,
others for their antiquarian intereét, have survived by the
merest chance. Much has been lost, like the old Mitchell
Buildings, on Front Street, for instance, which a New England
town or a VirginiaVWilliamsburg would.have taken care to
preserve. Until the bridge was built across the creek on

Washington Street, it appeared that business would inevitably
expand out North and sSouth wWalnut Streets and that the Causey

Mansion and the fine old hQuses in the Torbert block in North
Milford were doomed to give place to commercial buildings.
most fortunately for the town the bridge has made possible a
More compact and convenient business section - convenient

because it makes a circular drive for automobiles and provides

greater ease of access to the stores. And yet, in spite of
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this lucky chance, the fact that they will be preserved
remains a pious hope - the hope that this or that building
will not fall into the hands of the Fhilistines, but into
hands ready to restore and preserve that which can no longer
be replaced. The preservation of such things is already the
serious concern of other communities.:  Not long ago some of
you may have seen a photograph in the paperé of some citizens
of Boston sitting in groups on the pavement. The city had
threatened to remove the old brick pavements which were so
weli in keeping with the buiidings on the street, but the
determined resistance of thesé#entusiastic "sitters® called

so much attention to the proposed desecration that the
pavements were saved and will remain for many a long day to
delight the antiquarian eye. ’$o~jealously do the citizens

of Boston guard even the pavements that front their historic
buildingg. Here then is our moral - private citizens can do
all - or even enough to win the battle. Without some
sympathetic civic help our treasures will continue to disappea
one by one, in the future as they have in the past. Wwe can-
not get back what our town has lost - we can save those really

fine things that remain.



Parson Thorne House

This house was built about 1785 by the Rev.
3ydenham Thorne, an Anglican minister who came here from
Virginia about 1773 to take charge of Christ Church which
then stood at Church Hill. This house is one of the best
colonial survivals in the county. It has the curtain wings
so typical of plantation architecture in the 18th century.
Exquisite panelling and built-in cupboards with butterfly
shelves remain in place in the parlor. You will note that
the roof line was changed in the late years of the last
century, being raised to a square pitched roof, the old
dormers removed and the present peakéd gables installed.
These changes may be plainly seen in the attics where even
the frame of one of the old dormers still exists., Notice
also that there is no indoor communication between the
plantation offices, the samll rooms behind the arcades no
doubt ha;ing been larders and butteries. Until a few years

ago some of the slave quarters still stood in the rear.

It is impossible to look at this house without
giving some thought to its builder. In addition to his
clerical duties Mr, Thorne was a mill owner, a planter, and
a co-founder of Milford. In politics he was a zealous Tory.
It was during his rectorate that the present Christ Church
was built although it was not finished due to his untimely
death. As was the custom he is buried on the plantation and
those who are curious may see his tomb within the walled

family graveyard.
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Christ Church

Christ Church, Milford, originally Christ Church,
Mispillion, founded 1704, was one of the first colonial
parishes of the Diocese of Delaware, organized by the Society
of the Propagation of the Gospel of the Church of England,
with the Right Reverend Bishop of London as the Ecclesiastical

Authority.

The first church edifice, known as Christ Chufch,
Savannah, Mispillion, was built about 1705. This was replaced
by a larger edifice and a churchyard upon land granted Jehu
Davis in 1720. This building was used until 1836 and was
known as Christ Church, Milford, from 1790. In the year
1789, Joseph Cliver, a Vestryman, gave two lots in the newly-
planned Eommunity of Milford. Upon a portion of this plot
the present edifice was bﬁilt. The remaining part is used
for churc¢hyard purposes. This building remained incomplete

until 1836 when it was consecrated for Divine Services.

The present Christ Church originally was of colonial
design. This was changed by alterations and the addition of

the chancel and the tower 1861-1865.
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Pettigrew House

This house now owned and occupied by Charles Windsor
was built by Capt. John Pettigrew. LEspecially interesting hee
is the quaint kitchen wing Qith its towering chimney. The
house is equally interesting as the long time residence of
Capt. Pettigrew's daughter Mrs., Ann T. Greer. DMrs. Greer
kept store in a small story and a half building Jjust west of
her residence carried on.a farm, and was fambus for her
business ability and shrewd worldly wisdom. Her advice on
many matters was often sought by her fellow townsmen. So
combetent was she that Judge‘Wise of Eﬁrginia carried on a
legal correspondence with her énd seeing her letters signed
"A., T, Greer" presumed that his correspondent was a man and

complimented him on his business ability.

The house in later years was the home of Mrs. Clara

Yardley and is still well preserved and in excellent repair.

>

112 Front Street, N.W. (Dr. 4illiam Marshall Jr.)

The northeastern rooms were built in 1787 by Elias
Shockley, tenanted successively by Lowder Laytbn, the Fitzgeralds,
the Commercial Bank of Delaware and in 1811 the western rooms
were added by the Milford Branch of the First National Bank &
Smyrna. In 1879 both properties were snuggled against each
other in the lines shown on the bricks from the frontal view,
were purchased by Dr. & Mrs. George W. Marshall, who joined
the two parts in one and raised a family of four boys, of
whom the second oldest, Dr. William Marshall Jr., assumed

ownership on the death of his mother in 1933.
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The house is of brick and contains the offices
which have been used first by Ur. George Marshall until his
passing in 1915 and then by his sons Drs. william and

Samuel Marshall.

The Towers

This house which architecturally presents today
all the gingerbread romanticism of the 80's was not always

so. The room on the corner was once a general store kept

by John wWallace the step-father of John Lofland, the Milford
Bard. It is to him that the house owes its fame. It was

in the little garret room whose window is to be seen next

to the chimney that he acquired his education and it was

from that garret room that he sent forth the poems, short
stories and essays that made hisf}eputation. Unfortunately,

he was an alcoholic and an opium addict and these vices |
hastened *his untimely end. According to his friends he fell
into evil habits because of disappointment in a love affair

in his early years. Mr. Mitchell, the father of his fiancee,
forbade the marriage and on the day of Miss Mitchell's marriage
to another man John withdrew from the world and for the
succeeding three years never left this house. Indeed, during
that time he is said never to have had a'hat on his head.
Having loved society he came to abhor it and it was during

this period that the case bottle became his constance companion.
However, he left a considerable body of writings and to this

day is the literary luminary of Milford.
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Uld School

The cafeteria was originally the Milford Academy
built about 1810 and sponsored by the Masonic Lodge. Before
1817 a second floor had been added for a lodge meeting room
and a belfry added for the old iron bell, cast in 1809, and
now displayed in a cabinet at the new school through the
interest of the local D.A.R. The Masons dd not own the building
until 1832 whan Temple Lodge #9 bought it and retained it
until 1846 when they sold it to the school committee for the
United Districts #42 and 43 of Kent County. This was a pay
school and most of Milford's prominent men attended here.

John M. Clayton was born at Dagsboro but his parents lived

at Silver Hill during his academy attendance. You will better
understand the excellence of the curriculum offered here

when you consider the many eminent men who came from the school.
John Lofland the Milford bard was educated here together with
other well known names as George P. Fisher, Hiram McColley,
Caleb Layton, Daniel Godwin, Daniel Curfey, James Ldfland

and other doctors, ministers and statesmen. Col. Haslet,

the Revolutionary hero, had a son who attended school in-
Milford. The nickname of the state, Blue Hen's Chickens,
originated in this locality. Captain Jonathan Caldwell
commanded a company in his regiment. His men took with them
some game chickens with celebrated fighting qualities and said
to be from the brood of a Kent County Blue Hen. The fame of
these fights spread through the army and into contemporary
history until Delaware Veterans became known as Blue Hens
Chickens and the state the Blue Hen State. We wish this old
building could be preserved far posterity as there is nothing

of the past which links so many of us as intimately as this.
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0ld Methodist -Graveyard

This graveyard grew up around the first Methodist
chapel in Milford, a small frame building, the brick foundation
of which you may see in the rear. In 1842 this bUildiﬁg stood,
or rather, leaned on props and sometime thereafter was sold
for $27.00. Across the street is St. Paul's, the second
Methodist building, now a colored church. Many of the old
worthies of the town are buried here, General Torbert, Trusten

P. McColley, Daniel Currey and Governor Causey.

General Torbert House

This house was built about 1825 by Benjamin Wadhams
(also the builder of the old National Bank on the other corner)
for a tavern, since it stood on the o0ld stage line. To
vigsualize it as it was then you must take away the veranda on
the garden side and the GOW window above it and remove the
third flcor. Here Mrs. Hetty Starr kept Starr's Tavern and
is said to have died of fright one night when her drunken son

rode a blood horse into the front hall. She is buried in the

old Methodist graveyard.

The house later became the home of Daniel Currey who
added the third floor according to plans drawnvby Alonzo
Reynolds. Mr. Currey's daughter Miss Mary married General
Torbert of Civil War fame. General Torbert was our Consul
General at Paris from 1870 to 187.4. When the Torberts returned
to Milford they brought handsome French furnishings with them.
This house was famous for its hOSpitality‘and was the scene

of many fashionable reunions. Mrs. Torbert was especially
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gracious to all visiting clergy and here were entertained.

many of the most prominent people of this country. General
Torbert lost his life in the shipwreck of the Vera Cruz in

1880 in his efforts to save his fellow passengers. His

funeral was long remembered as the largest ever seen in Milford.

It is worthy of your attention to notice the

chaste lines of Greek architecture emp;oyed on this house

and on ﬁhe Mitchell house directly opposite and especially
to the curious fact that the portico of this house provides
a pérfect example of the Doric column while the portico of
the Mitchell house is an équaliy splénded example of the
Ionic order. This house is a perfect architectural example
of the classic "Maison Carre" (Square House) of which there
is a famous specimen in Richménd;/ The walls were originally
raised for a bank but the building was completed and the

service wing added by Dr., Mitchell.

The houses in this block form the stateliest group
of homes remaining in the town. They are seen to the best
advantage ffbm the National Bank cornep@here the succession
of stately facades mount the hill in increasing grandeur.
Fortunately, the entire block still retains its ancient Brick
pavements which are in admirable keeping with the buildings.
Although the portico of the Davis home has been destroyed.
The house was once the old Methodist parsonaBe long the home
of the Rev. Jonathan S. Willis and there was a Dame's School
for small children kept in the cellar to which there was an

outside entrance below the level of the street.
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The next house south now in the process of
restoration by its present owner, Edgar Welch, was built
by John McCurdy of Philadelphia for his daughter Mrs. Nehemiah
Davis, the grandmother of Mrs. Helen Pierce. The parlor,
which has been restored, boasts a handsome roccoco ceiling
and fireplace. The next house, long the home of Dr. Collins,
was built by Mrs. Collins's father Daniel Godwin on the site
of the old Causey home. The rear rooms of this older house
are a part of the present edifice and with their low ceilings,
tiny staircases and paneled doors form a delightful contrast
to the more stately rooms built by Mr. Godwin in the front.
Especially noteworthy here is the sharp roof line with its

casement garret windows reminiscent of a Parisian roof top.

Baker House

where the house now stands there stood about 1830
a one story frame dwelling occupied by William Sammons. From
him it passed to Peter F. Causey and by him was sold to Daniel
C. Godwin, who changed the sloping hill to the present terrace
and built the handsome three story residence now occupied by
Dr. John B. Baker. Mr. Godwin sold it to Dr. Robert Frame.
It was next bought by Dr. Robert H. Clark, paymaster in the
United otates Navy. During his lifetime it was greatly
beautified and boasted a splendid boxwood garden. There was '
once a curious brick bath house built into the bank of the
terrace where there were wooden tubs which provided a steam

bath when filled with hot water. The house has been
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sympathetically cared for by Dr. Baker and is as beautiful

today as ever,

Causey House

This house, known to most of us as the Causey
Mansion from its long occupancy by Governor Causey's family,
waé built for Levin Crapper in 1763 by an Enélish architect
named Mitchell. The plantation counted 1500 acres and
included what is now South Milford. The house was then two
and”a half stories and what is now the back was then the
front. About 1855 it was remoaeled by Governor Causey in
the mode of the Greek revival. There is much elegance and
simplicity in this adaptation which is to be seen in the
window céps and the beautiful’irch grille work at the windows
in the third story. Most of the slave guarters have disa-
ppeared hut one yet remains, the small brick building to the
right of the house. quernor Causey was in the mercantile
business. He shipped his products by schooner to Philadelphia
and brought back articles of household use for sale here.

Another governor of Delaware, Daniel Rogers, lived there,
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McColley nouse (Egglinton Hall)

About 1792-95 a Mr. Egglinton built the back room
(now the kitchen) and the room above. After Ezglinton's
death his widow married Mr. William Blacke who impounded the
pond and ran the plantation of several hundred acres. About
1805 he aaded two rooms above and one large room below to
the earlier Egglinton Building. On the death of the Blacks
the plantation was bought by Trusten Polk McColley about 1828.
hHe added the three story frontal building of two large rooms
on each floor and a staircase and hall, perhaps the finest

in Sussex County, that is open to the third floor.

Mr, McColley was a hatter by trade but is better
remembergd as a popular Methoéist preacher whose fame was
state wide. His popularity-may bé Judged by the fact that
in the course of his ministry he married 1600 couples and

preached “over 1000 funerals.

T. C. Collins House

The' home of T. C. Collins, 205 S. E. Front street
is said to be the second oldest house in south Milford. It
was built in 1794 by a ship carpenter named David West and
occupied by him until he sold it to Peter F. Causey. In
1836 it passed to Manlove Carlisle and in 1866 was purehased
by Thomas Carlisle, grandfather of T. Carlisle Collins. At
that time portions of the present boxwood gardens were laid

out and were later extended when the property passed to Mrs,

barwin Collins, daughter of Thomas Carlisle. Her son, the
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present owner, has made extensive additions to the

dwelling and the gardens and has been especially successful
in his restoration of the house. The peculiar character

of ship carpenter work is plainly evident in the interior,
The windows are fitted somewhat in the manner of a port-
hole without sills. The present owners have filled it with

fine old furniture and share their pleasure in the property

with all lovers of old Milford.
e ol e el e e A A ale He el e e oo Heale e

There are yet other houses in town of the greatest

interest which our space in this brief catalog will not

permit us to describe, Among'these are the Scribner House
now occubied by Col. Lank; the tﬁb beautiful Watson Houses
with their classic fronts in pressed brick, the one occupied
by Mrs. 3arah Stanton and the other by the Masonic Temple;
the Harrison white Property (No. N.W. Front Street); the
Charles white house built by John M. Darby and probably once
the mill house; the Billie Welch House (now occupied by Mrs.
S5allie Sapp) built by the proprietor of the Blacksmith Shop
which stood on the opposite corner; the old Senator Abbott
House(No. 115 N. W. Front Street); the Max Willson House
which has a stairway similar to that at Mt. Vernon; the
Clarence F. Jewell Property (203 N. W. Front Street) which
was built by Dr. dJohn Rélston and later used as the office of

Dr. Joseph Sudler.
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ADDENDA

Sudler Apartmenta

This quaint old house was built by John Ralston in
1793 on land bought from Joseph OliVer. Ralston's son-in-law
Dr. Joseph Sudler lived in the dwelling and had the use of the
shop. It is a curious commentary on the times that Ralston in
-hia will made provision that Sucler should pRy no:off:!.ca rent
unlesa he should attempt to bring in a bill for medical services
to Ralston or his family, in which cuse the rental charges for
ﬁw office were to become retré—»active. In 1837 the estate was
sold and the building ch:nged ha.xids many times, It was ouned
by Captain George Primrcse, a Fhiladelphia ship builder, until
1843, then by Daniel Godwin., On one side was a milliner shop,
now the residence of ¥rs, Lee Truitt. In the shop end of the
building Martin Chamberlin kept a grocery store for many years
and 1t Was also occupied by John Emerson in 1848. It was he
who printed the old Milford Beacon.

This house i1s espscially interesting in it's roof lines
with the tall old dormers that give it such an 18th century
look., It has been very successfully restored by Mr. Clarence F,
Jewell, the present owmer, and 1s now known as the Sudler

Apartments.
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1923 by the owner, Dr. Frank L. Grier. Dr. Grier and his
brother, Dr. G. Layton Grier, were dentists who bought a
dental supply business and moved it to Milford in 1900.
They developed it into an international business, now the
L.D. Caulk Division of Dentsply International. Dr. Grier
was instrumental in bringing about the initiation of President
Warren G. Harding into Milford’s Evergreen Forest #49 of
the Tall Cedars of Lebanon. On that occasion President
Harding was a guest of the Griers’ in this house.

East Side of Old Rehoboth Boulevard be-
tween S.E. Front & S.E. 2nd Streets . . .

UNION CEMETERY . The little used Union Cemetery was laid out by
Captain Thomas Humphreys. “The Peninsular News and Advertiser”
stated on March 27, 1874 “It is beautifully located on high ground,
about a quarter of a mile from South Milford on the bay road.”
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ELCOME to Milford, Delaware, a city rich in the development of both Kent and Sussex counties and of our country.
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HISTORY OF MILFORD

For many years a river-crossing settlement, the town
was founded in 1787 by the Reverend Sydenham
Thorne, an Anglican clergyman who had arrived in
1774, and Mr. Joseph Oliver, a merchant who had ex-
tensive landholdings in the area.

In 1787 Reverend Thorne purchased property on Sil-
ver Hill, just west of Oliver's holdings, both properties
being part of a tract of land which had been granted to
one Henry Bowman in 1680 which was known as “Saw
Mill Range.”

The Thorne residence is now known as the Parson
Thorne Mansion.

The two men are reported to have entered into an
agreement whereby Thorne would build a dam across

the river at his mill and Oliver would lay out his land in
building lots. The founders adopted the Old English sys-
tem of 99 year ground leases in perpetuity rather than
outright sales.

Milford has been the home of eight governors of the
State of Delaware: John (Jehu) Davis 1789; Daniel
Rogers 1797-99; Joseph Haslet 1811-14 and 1823;
Charles Polk 1827-30; William Tharp 1848-51; Peter
F. Causey 1855-59; William Burton 1859-63; and
William T. Watson 1895-97.

* Listed in the National Register of Historic Places

* % Listed in the National Register of Historic Places as part of an
Historic District
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